o
China Binary Sale Technology Limited
HMNBFHEERMBR A F

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RESEBEMELNERAR)
Stock Code B35 : 8255

ANNUAL REPORT &%

2017

| HH

SN EEEEEEEEEEE
EEEEER

El EEEEEE
ANEEEEEnE
NENEEEEEE B



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE” AND THE “GEM”,
RESPECTIVELY)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small
and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors of China Binary Sale Technology
Limited (the “Company” and the “Directors”, respectively] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Financial Summary

MBRE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT AR®TT ARETT ARBTT
Results (for the year ended e
31 December] (BHE12ANBILEE)
— Revenue — A 26,413 30,965 48,329 63,094 61,228
— Gross profit —EH 11,323 22,440 41,502 42,712 41,971
— Listing expenses — WX = — - — (8,310)
— (Loss]/profit before —BRETEHER (614) 176,726 25,304 27,400 21,065
income tax credit/ (FX) A1 (E518)
(expense) /i
— Total comprehensive —FR2HEKR
income for the year 188 5,791 189,344 18,272 20,611 14,886
Profit/(loss) for the year UDTEEELER
attributable to: =R (BE) -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ RN 7,041 156,054 18,986 20,757 14,886
Non-controlling interests IR (6,200) (1,427) (714) (14¢) -
841 154,627 18,272 20,611 14,886
Earnings per share BRAEMARED)
(RMB cents)
— Basic — B 1.47 32.51 3.96 4.32 4.03
Financial Position B S AR
(as at 31 December] (R12A318)
— Non-current assets —RBEE 148,436 181,293 24,880 4,643 1,875
— Current assets —RBEE 270,828 268,769 176,480 153,720 121,431
— Current liabilities —REBaE 87,131 119,859 60,964 52,021 41,008
— Non-current liabilities —JRBAE 7,099 8,498 6,873 4,366 2,403
— Total equity — R 325,034 321,705 133,523 101,976 79,895
WMNHMFHEERMERIT —ZE—tEFH 5



Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

On behalf of the board of the directors of China Binary Sale Technology
Limited (the "Company” and the “Board”, respectively), | wish to present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”] for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

REVIEW

In 2017, the Group accomplished operating revenue of approximately
RMB26,413,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB4,552,000 or
14.7% as compared to RMB30,965,000 in 2016. In 2017, the Group’s
operating cost was approximately RMB15,090,000, representing an increase
of RMB6,565,000 or approximately 77.0% as compared to RMB8,525,000 in
2016. Gross profit amounted to approximately RMB11,323,000, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB11,117,000 or 49.5% as compared to
RMB22,440,000 in 2016.

In 2017, the Group achieved profit of approximately RMB841,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB153,786,000 or 99.5% as
compared to approximately RMB154,627,000 in 2016.

OUTLOOK

In recent years, the internet economy is playing an increasingly important
role in the development of the PRC’s economy. Looking forward in 2018, the
Group will continue to place emphasis on business innovation and risk
management mind set in developing its online transaction services for
online game products and micro financing facilitating business through its
online micro financing platform. The Group will strive to expand the
coverage and user base of its online micro financing platform while pursue
to cooperate with independent online financing platform to further capitalise

more development opportunities in the online micro financing market.

In terms of the Group’s online transaction services and distribution of online
game products business, the Group will continue to identify and explore new
online game operators actively and strive to capture business opportunities
in 2018. On the other hand, the Group will also control cost and explore new
service which could leverage on its existing business to enhance the

profitability of the Group.

In the long run, the Group will continue to identify suitable investment
opportunities in internet economy related business such as fintech,
blockchain technology, online financing platforms etc. with an aim to

enhance the profitability of the Group and value to the shareholders.

[ China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERE|E (FH)

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and management, | would like to express gratitude
to the Group’s staff for their hard work during the Year. | would also like to
extend my thanks to all shareholders, fellow Board members and business

partners who have supported the Group.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Sun Jiangtao

23 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB &Y m Bd 0 AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in providing online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers, and
providing micro financing facilitating services to individual borrowers and
lenders in the People’'s Republic of China (the "PRC"]. The Group offers
online transaction platforms which can enable online game users to pay
their online game accounts through mobile top-up credits by operating its
self-developed Shenzhoufu System and cooperating with online game
operators in the PRC. The Group uses the mobile top-up credits received
from online game users to top up mobile subscription accounts. Such
process can also be realised by the use of Shen Zhou Fu Card issued by the
Group on the internet. Besides, the Group is also engaged in the distribution
of online game products, the provision of micro financing facilitating
services, the provision of financing guarantee service, the provision of

information technology services and the provision of advertising services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB26,413,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB4,552,000 or
14.7% as compared to RMB30,965,000 of last year. The principal change in
revenue during the Year was as follows:

1. Online transaction services

During the Year, the transaction volume of online transaction services
declined. There were approximately 2,737,000 transactions of
providing online transaction services to the online game operators
through the Shenzhoufu System, which decreased by approximately
9,594,000 transactions or 77.8% as compared to 12,331,000
transactions in 2016. The transaction amount for the whole Year was
approximately RMB205,000,000, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB617,000,000 or 75.1% as compared to that of
RMB822,000,000 of last year. In 2017, the average discount granted by
game operators increased to approximately 2.71% from 2.67% in
2016, representing an increase of approximately 0.04%.

The revenue generated from online transaction services decreased
from approximately RMB19,318,000 in 2016 to approximately
RMB4,663,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB14,655,000 or 75.9%. The decrease in the transaction volume of
online transaction services was mainly due to the decrease of the
transaction volume of several online game operators which had

relatively high amount of transactions.
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Due to the decrease in transaction volume of online transaction
services, the transaction volume of mobile top-up services also
declined. During the Year, there were approximately 5,276,000
transactions of mobile top-up services provided by the Group, which
decreased by approximately 18,500,000 transactions or 77.8% as
compared to 23,776,000 transactions in 2016. The transaction amount
for the Year was approximately RMB388,000,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB1,411,000,000 or 78.4% as compared
to that of approximately RMB1,799,000,000 for the last year.

The Group purchased less mobile top-up cards from
telecommunication operators or their distributors to fulfill the top-up
demand. In 2017, the nominal value of the mobile cards externally
purchased by the Group was approximately RMB179,000,000,
accounting for approximately 45.8% of the nominal amount of mobile
top-up services for the whole Year, while for 2016, the nominal value
of the mobile cards externally purchased by the Group was
approximately RMB963,000,000, accounting for approximately 53.3%
of the nominal amount of mobile top-up services for that year.

Distribution of online game products

During the Year, the transaction amount from distributing online
game products of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB615,830,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB853,870,000 or 58.1% as compared to that of approximately
RMB1,469,700,000 in 2016, which was mainly attributable to the
Company’'s developing new game operators. The revenue from
distribution of game products for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB6,778,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMBA4,464,000 or 39.7% as compared to approximately RMB11,242,000
in 2016.

Provision of information technology services
During the Year, the Group has generated revenue from provision of
information technology services of RMB583,000 (2016: RMB401,000.

Provision of micro financing facilitating and financing
guarantee services (“New Business”)

During the Year, the Group conducted micro financing facilitating
services as an intermediary service institution for lenders and
borrowers through its online micro financing platform and provided
financing guarantee service for the lenders. The micro financing
facilitating services provided by the Group include (i) developing and
operating an online micro financing platform to facilitate lenders to
lend money to the borrowers; [ii] introducing borrowers registered on
the Group's online micro financing platform to the lenders; [iii)
conducting credibility review service on the borrowers; and (iv)
provided customer service and administrative services to the
borrowers and lenders. The Group generated revenue of
approximately RMB13,885,000 (2016: Nil] from provision of micro
financing facilitating services and of approximately RMB493,000 (2016:
Nil] from provision of financing guarantee service.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

HRBEXSRBERZENTIE &F
BEXEREAXSHSEDHEETE B
REE AEERENEERERDS
B X5 % H A5276000F 0 20164
#923,776,0005% T F& 7T #18,500,000°R
8778%  RFENRFEBHAAR
#:388,000,000t WM EFH R Z & &
49 A R #1,799,000,000 7T T B& 49 A R #&
1,411,000,000 7T 5% 78.4% °

AEERARNESEELHIESHED
ERBRIOTERRBERET KR
20179 AEEINIENEE T REELD
A AR 1790000007 152 FEE
FTERER S EBENLLH8% M
016F  AEENENFEEARBEEREL
A AR 963000000 5 E FEE
FERBE 2 S E R 453.3% °

WEBERERDHE

RAFE  AEEH LD HERERD
RS5& BB ANRM15830,0007T @ &
016FHR 5 FEH ARK1,469,700,000
TR T #) A R 853,870,000 T =k
58.1% ' 7% & £ B A 1 7) 2% ¥ i
BEPME - ARFESHEMERED
SRR AL B AREE7780007T @ &
2016 F #4) AR #11,242,0000C & T 4 A
R 4,464,000 7T 8 39.7% ©

BEEBRMRS

RAFE AEEREEEHEMERS
5 AR #583,0007T (20164 : AR
401,0007T) By U A ©

RME/NEERE SN EEERR
B (THEKD

RAFE  AEBEAT N REKES
BHEFNEREFEAREARER
ARBNERERNMREARABE A
REBEERRE - AEEHRMHH/E
BEFNRBE2BEIAEREER /)
HRMATE  MEEBREARMEGBRANK
FoABREANBERAEBGR /58
BMEFEEDHERA IEERAE
TEERERS  RiVEERARKE
ARETRETHREERE - A%E®EA
RENEBREFPNRBESKZHOAR
# 13,885,000 7T (20164 : 4) & B 12 L @t
BRERRGESKELH AREL93,0007T
(20164 : 4&) ©

HBMHEFHEERMERLXE —F-—LFEFH 9



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Cost of Revenue

In 2017, the cost of revenue of the Group increased to approximately
RMB15,090,000 from RMB8,525,000 in 2016 by approximately RMB6,565,000
or 77.0%. The increase of cost of revenue was mainly attributable to the cost
arising from conducting micro financing facilitating services during the

period.

Gross Profit

During the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB11,323,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB11,117,000
or 49.5% as compared to approximately RMB22,440,000 in 2016, and the
gross profit margin in 2017 decreased to approximately 42.9% from 72.5%
in 2016 due to the increase of cost of the revenue.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased from
approximately RMB4,530,000 in 2016 to approximately RMB5,084,000 in
2017, representing an increase of approximately RMB554,000 or 12.2%. The
increase of the selling and distribution expenses was attributable to the
staff cost incurred from the New Business conducted during the period.

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, the administrative expenses of the Group were
approximately RMB43,845,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB20,913,000 or 91.2% as compared to approximately RMB22,932,000 in
2016. The increase of administrative expenses was due to increment of staff
cost and foreign exchange loss as a result of the New Business conducted

during the period and foreign exchange loss.

Income Tax Credit/(Expense)

During the Year, the income tax credit of the Group were approximately
RMB1,455,000 (2016: income tax expense of approximately RMB22,099,000)
with the effective tax rate of -237.0% (2016: 12.5%). The negative income tax
expense was due to the decrease of deferred tax as a result of the loss
before tax and the over-provision in last year.

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

During the Year, the total comprehensive income of the Group was
approximately RMB5,791,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB183,553,000 or 96.9% as compared to RMB189,344,000 in 2016, which
was mainly due to the significant investment income recorded last year.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, bank and cash balances of the Group were
approximately RMB83,319,000 (31 December 2016: RMB164,808,000), which
were mainly denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”], United States Dollars ("USD")
and Hong Kong Dollars ("HKD").

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have shareholders’ loans but
have bank borrowings of RMB61,000,000 secured by pledged bank deposits
of USD9,950,000 (equivalent to RMB65,015,000) (31 December 2016: nil). All
bank borrowing is denominated in RMB. Details of bank borrowings of the

Group are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately RMB148,436,000 (31 December 2016: RMB181,293,000). The
decrease of non-current assets was due to the disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets. The long-term investment in available-for-sale
financial assets of the Group decreased from approximately
RMB174,186,000 in 2016 to approximately RMB136,833,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB37,353,000. The total current assets were
approximately RMB270,828,000 (31 December 2016: RMB268,769,000). The
current assets mainly included the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables. The total amount of current liabilities was approximately
RMB87,131,000 (31 December 2016: RMB119,859,000), the current liabilities
decreased by approximately RMB32,728,000. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group’s current ratio was 3.11 (31 December 2016: 2.24). The Group’s
gearing ratio (net debts divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was nil as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil).

Pledge of Assets

The Group's pledged bank deposits were approximately RMB65,015,000 as
at 31 December 2017 for bank borrowings. Save for the pledged bank
deposits, the Group did not pledge any of its assets as securities for bank

borrowings.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The principal business operated by the Group was denominated in RMB,
while part of assets and liabilities may be denominated in USD or HKD. Any
material fluctuation of exchange rate from the USD and HKD against RMB
will impact on the financial results of the Group. The Group will continue to
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely. During the Year, the Group
had a foreign exchange loss of approximately RMB3,913,000 (2016: foreign
exchange gain of RMB728,000) resulted from the change of the exchange
rate.
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
evaluation of the financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the board of directors of the Company closely monitors the Group’'s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and commitments can meet its funding requirements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 137 employees (31 December 2016:
82). For the Year, the staff costs of the Group, including directors’

remuneration amounted to approximately RMB25,137,000 (2016:
RMB13,103,000).

The Group believes that employees are one of its most important assets. In
order to offer a competitive remuneration to employees, the Group adjusted
their remuneration to closely related to their performance, education
background and experience, as well as the condition of the labour market in
2017. As a result, staff costs increased significantly during the Year by
91.8%. The Group also positively provides training opportunities for
employees to strengthen their working skills.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities arising from
guarantees given to financial institutions in respect of financial guarantee
provided to independent third parties of approximately RMB17,492,000 (2016:
nil). The Group did not have any litigation against itself (2016: nil).

Significant Investment and Disposal

On 12 May 2017,
financial asset which was principally engaged in software development, at

the Group disposed an unquoted available-for-sale

cash consideration of RMB3,865,000. The consideration was fully settled
and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of RMB865,000 in profit or
loss.

On 9 August 2017, the Group entered into two agreements with an
independent company for investing a virtual currencies mining fund (the
“Fund”). An independent fund managing company (the “Fund Manager”] is
engaged in managing the operation of virtual currencies mining. Pursuant
to the agreements, the Group agreed to invest, in total, RMB12,000,000,
representing 23.3% non-voting right of the Fund. Any investment income
from production of virtual currencies would be distributed to the Group in
accordance with the percentage of interest in the Fund. The Group did not
have significant influence over this company, evidenced by (i) the instrument
does not give the Group any voting power regarding the financial and
operating activities of the Fund and (ii] the lack of any direct or indirect
involvement at board level, in particular the financial and operating policy
decisions of the Fund, and no right to appoint or remove the Fund Manager,
and was therefore accounted for the investment as available-for-sale
financial asset.
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As at 20 October 2017, the Group acquired approximately 5.2% equities of
Zhuhai Sanmu Technology Co., Ltd. (a company incorporated in China, its
issued shares listed on National Equities Exchange and Quotations in China
,stock code: 831766) at cash consideration of approximately RMB115,000,000

through its wholly-owned subsidiary Xinjiang Nine Domain Digital Venture
Capital Limited.

The Group acquired 30% equity interest in Zhuhai Aerfaniu Technology
Limited for a cash consideration of RMB3,000,000 on 24 March 2017. Details
of the Group's associate at 31 December 2017 are as follow:

As at 12 September 2017, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with five individuals third parties (the "Vendors”), pursuant to
which the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell, and Xinjiang Nine Domain
Digital Venture Capital Limited* (BTN TAIZEEER AT a
subsidiary of the Company by virtue of a series of structured contracts,
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire equity interest of Maanshan Anxin
Small Loan Limited* (B#LZL =/ FEEZEEAT]), Maanshan Bai Vi
Industrial Co., Ltd.* (FERILFHEEEFR AR, Maanshan Yu Ao Network
Technology Co., Ltd.* (FF3¥RILFFEMEEEI AR 2ARA]) and Jiangdong Sales
Electricity Co., Ltd.* (IEEEHGR AT at the consideration of
RMB35,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was then terminated due
to amicable discussions and upon mutual agreement on 9 February 2018.
Please refer the announcements of the Company dated 12 September 2017
and 9 February 2018 for further details.

Transactions During the Year

Save as disclosed in section headed “Significant Investment and Disposal”,

the following are transactions entered into during the Year:-

Major Transaction

From 27 June 2017 to 17 October 2017 (both dates inclusive), Prajna
Technology Limited ("Prajna Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company conducted a disposal of 95,448,000 shares, approximately 0.43%,
in the share capital of Chong Sing Holdings FinTech Group Limited ("Chong
Sing”) (previously known as “Credit China FinTech Holdings Limited”), a
company listed on the GEM, on the open market with a gross market
proceeds of HK$103.1 million (the "Disposal’].

As certain of the relevant percentage ratios (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) for the Disposal exceeded 25% but all relevant percentage ratios
were less than 75%, the Disposal constituted a major disposal for the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules and were subject to the notification,
announcement and shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 19
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to Rule 19.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, (i) as no shareholder of the
Company (the "Shareholder”) has material interest in the Disposal, none of
the Shareholders is required to abstain from voting if the Company was to
convene a general meeting for the approval of the Disposal; and (i) the
Company has obtained a written approval dated 13 November 2017 from
Data King Limited and Swift Well Limited, being the controlling
Shareholders, holding 143,040,000 shares of the Company and 128,614,800
shares of the Company, respectively, representing approximately 56.59% of
the issued Shares in aggregate for the approval of the Disposal. As a result,
no extraordinary general meeting will be convened by the Company to
approve the Disposal. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 13 November 2017, 4 December 2017 and circular of the Company
dated 15 December 2018.

Connected Transaction

On 29 August 2017, Prajna Technology Limited ("Prajna Technology”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Sanbao Star Limited (Sanbao
Starl, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is owned as to approximately 72.8%, 13.1% and 14.1% by Mr. Sun
Jiangtao, Mr. Tang Bing (both Directors) and three other independent third
parties entered in to the share transfer agreement 1 and share transfer
agreement 2, pursuant to which Prajna Technology conditionally agreed to
acquire and Sanbao Star conditionally agreed to sell approximately 4.5%
and 20.7% equity interest in Goopal Group and Joy Credit Online Limited, at
a consideration of US$0.3 million (equivalent HK$2.3 million]) and
approximately US$0.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.1 million),
respectively. Please refer the announcement of the Company dated 29
August 2017 for further details.

Discloseable Transaction

On 12 September 2017, Mr. Huang Qingsheng, Ms. Huang Fang, Ms. Huang
Rong, Ms. Liu Lifang, Ms. Tang Shigin (collectively the "Vendors’] and
Xinjiang Nine Domain Digital Venture Capital Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company [the "Purchaser”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Vendors conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase the entire interest
in Maanshan Bai Yi Industrial Co., Ltd., Maanshan Yu Ao Network
Technology Co., Ltd. and Jiangdong Sales Electricity Co., Ltd. including
Maanshan Anxin Small Loan Limited, for an aggregate consideration of
RMB35,000,000 (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”).

Through amicable discussion and upon mutual agreement, the Vendors and
the Purchaser entered into a termination agreement on 9 February 2018 to
terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Vendors had refund
the deposits of RMB3,500,000 on 28 February 2018. Please refer the
announcements of the Company dated 12 September 2017 and 9 February
2018 for further details.

Use of Proceeds

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had not utilised any funds raised from
listing in early December 2013. Net proceeds from the placing of the
Company’s shares were currently deposited in the bank account of
Shenzhoufu Software, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as short
term deposits.
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Significant Events After Reporting Period

(i)

(ii)

On 17 January 2018, Swift Well Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (the "BVI") and is beneficially owned as to 95%
by Mr. Wei, the chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director,
and 5% by Mr. Wei Chunming, uncle of Mr. Wei, on trust for Mr. Wei
which is interested in approximately 26.79% of the issued share
capital of the Company [the “"Vendor”) and Data King Limited, a
company incorporated in BVl with limited Lliability, a company
incorporated in BVl and is wholly owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an
executive Director (the "Purchaser”] had entered into a share
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
purchase, in aggregate, 101,760,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 21.20% of the issued share capital of the
Company for a total consideration of HK$50,880,000, equivalent to
HK$0.50 per share (the "Share Purchase”).

The Share Purchase was completed on 17 January 2018 (the “Share
Purchase Completion”). Immediately following the Share Purchase
Completion, the Purchaser and parties acting in concert with it {other
than the Vendor, Mr. Wei and Mr. Tang Bin) were interested in a total
of 244,800,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
51% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers, the Purchaser is required to make an unconditional
mandatory cash offer to acquire all the shares in issue, other than
those already owned or agreed to be acquired by the Purchaser and
parties acting in concert with it (the "Offer” at an offer price of HK$0.6
per share).

The Purchaser intends to finance the consideration payable under the
Offer from the loan facility for the sum of up to HK$80,000,000 [the
“Loan Facility”). The Loan Facility for the sum of up to HK$80,000,000
is secured by charges over all of Mr. Sun Jiangtao’'s shareholding in
the Purchaser and 244,800,000 Shares held by the Purchaser
immediately following the Share Purchase Completion. For details,
please refer to announcements of the Company dated 17 January
2018, 18 January 2018, 7 February 2018 and 6 March 2018.

On 9 February 2018, Mr. Huang Qingsheng, Ms. Huang Fang, Ms.
Huang Rong, Ms. Liu Lifang, Ms. Tang Shigin (collectively the "Vendors”)
and Xinjiang Nine Domain Digital Venture Capital Limited, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
termination agreement, in which, it is agreed that the sale and
purchase agreement to acquire the entire interests in Maanshan
Anxin Small Loan Limited, Maanshan Bai Yi Industrial Co., Ltd,,
Maanshan Yu Ao Network Technology Co., Ltd. and Jiangdong Sales
Electricity Co., Ltd. for an aggregate consideration of RMB35,000,000
is terminated, and the Vendors will refund the deposits of
RMB3,500,000 on or before 28 February 2018. Please refer the
announcement of the Company dated 9 February 2018 for further
details.

BEMREXRSER

(i)

(ii)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Jiangtao, aged 40, is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company (the "Director”], and was appointed as an executive
Director on 11 May 2011. He is also a member of each of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Board (the "Nomination
Committee” and the "Remuneration Committee”, respectively]. Mr. Sun
joined the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”] in October 2004. He is
responsible for the overall management and business development of the
Group. Mr. Sun graduated from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering. In 2012, Mr. Sun was
acknowledged as “2012 Outstanding Young Entrepreneur in the Industry of
China’s Electronic Information™ by China Electronics Enterprises
Association. In 2014, Mr. Sun was recognized as 2014 China's Commercial
Influential People (FEIEFEFZENAY) by the Third Session of China
Finance Summit Organizing Committee (FFEIEI4EIE & 4HEK €] and he has
more than 15 years of experience in corporate management, financing,

operation, product design and marketing.

Mr. Sun also serves as a director of Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software
Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing
Tianjiyilian Technology Co., Ltd., and the chairman of Beijing Wanlefu
Technology Limited. All the above companies are the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 37, is an executive Director. Mr. Tang was appointed as
an executive Director on 8 June 2012. He is also the compliance officer of
the Company. Mr. Tang is responsible for overseeing the Group's
management of sales and marketing department and maintenance of the
daily operation. Mr. Tang has accumulated over ten years of experience in
the IT industry and online game business and is familiar with the operation
flow of the Group. Mr. Tang graduated from the Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics.

Mr. Tang also serves as an executive director of Beijing Shenzhoufu
Network Technology Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Zhonghua, aged 40, is the chairman of the board of Directors and a
non-executive Director. He joined the Group in October 2004 and was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 11 May 2011. He is also a member
of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”). Mr. Wei is
responsible for supervising administrative activities of the Group and giving
suggestions to the formation of strategies. Mr. Wei graduated from the
University of Science and Technology Beijing with a bachelor’'s degree in

Engineering. Mr. Wei has over 17 years of experience in the IT industry.
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Mr. Li Jianguang, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive Director on ¢
April 2015, responsible for supervising the administrative activities of the

Group and providing suggestions for policy making.

Mr. Li graduated from the department of economics of the Beijing University
in 1987 and received a master's degree in Science from the Guelph
University in Canada in 1994. He accumulated rich experience in investment
from years of career experience. Mr. Li has served as a non-executive
director of HC International, Inc. (a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”], stock code:
2280) since August 2006.

Mr. Lan Xi, aged 31, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 9 April
2015, responsible for supervising the administrative activities of the Group
and providing suggestions for policy making. He has nine years of
experience in investment bank and investment.

Mr. Lan graduated from the Beijing University in July 2008 with a bachelor’s
dual degree in electrical information science and technology and

economics.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Haoran, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 9 April 2015. Mr. Yang has over 16 years of
experience in internet industry. He graduated from the Anhui University of
Science and Technology and received a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering in 1991 and a master’s degree of computer from the University
of Texas at Dallas in 1998.

Mr. Hou Dong, aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. Hou has more
than 10 years of experience in management and capital investment. Mr. Hou
currently is a venture partner of Tuspark Venture Capital Management
(Beijing] Co., Ltd.

Mr. Hou obtained a master’s degree in Engineering and a master’'s degree

in Economics.

Mr. He Qinghua, aged 41, is an independent non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. He worked for several
famous international accounting firms with over 17 years of experience in

accounting, internal control and risk management.

Mr. He graduated from the University of International Business and
Economics in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") with a bachelor’s
degree in International Corporate Management in July 2000. He is a
Certified Public Accountant accredited by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)

EEREREEABGHN (H)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 37, is the compliance officer of the Group. For details of
his qualifications and experience, please refer to "Directors and Senior

Management Profiles — Executive Directors”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man, aged 59, was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 9 November 2013. Mr. Kwok has over 25 years’
in-house legal, corporate secretarial and management experience gained
at company secretary and other senior positions from reputable listed
companies in Hong Kong (including Hang Seng Index Constituent and Hang

Seng Mid-Cap 50 stock companies) and overseas.

Mr. Kwok matriculated from Queen’s College, holds a professional diploma
in company secretaryship and administration, a bachelor’s degree of arts
and a post-graduate diploma in laws and has passed the Common
Professional Examination in England and Wales.

Mr. Kwok is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrator in England, the Institute of Financial Accountants in England,
The Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, The Hong Kong Institute of
"HKICS),
Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of the

Chartered Secretaries (the The Hong Kong Association of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He possesses other
professional qualifications in arbitration, tax, financial planning and human
resource management. He was a chief examiner and the longest-serving

council member of the HKICS.

Mr. Kwok currently also serves as the company secretary and a joint
company secretary of a number of companies listed on the Main Board and
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, “GEM").
independent non-executive director of a company listed on the GEM.

respectively (the He is an

Mr. Kwok is an executive director and the head, corporate secretarial of
Boardroom Corporate Services (HK] Limited and a director of Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar. He is not an employee of the Company and he can contact Mr.
Chen Tao, the Finance Manager of the Company, in relation of to any

corporate secretarial matters.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The directors of China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the "Company” and
the “Directors”, respectively] have pleasure in presenting their annual
report with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”] for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the "Year”).

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company’s registered office and principal place of business are located
at P.0. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and 3rd Floor, No. 1 Building
Taiyueyuan, Haidian District, Beijing, the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"), respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company's
subsidiaries are principally engaged in providing online transaction services
by facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users, providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers, and providing
micro financing facilitating services to individual borrowers and lenders in
the PRC.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND
PLACING

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”) to rationalize the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’'s

ordinary shares of US$0.001 each (the “Shares”) on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the "GEM”,

respectively], the Company became the holding company of the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation are as set out in "History and Development” of
the prospectus issued by the Company dated 27 November 2013 (the

“Prospectus”).

Following the placing of 120,000,000 Shares at a price of HK$0.60 per Share
(the "Placing”), the Company was initially listed on the GEM on 4 December
2013 (the “Listing Date”).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHE (A

STRUCTURED CONTRACT

The Group is principally engaged in, through Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. ["Beijing TJYL"] and its subsidiaries, provision of online transaction
services. Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations, foreign
investors, unless fulfilling the qualification requirements, are prohibited
from holding equity interest in an entity which conducts value-added
telecommunications services. Accordingly, the Group cannot acquire equity
interest in Beijing TJYL, which conducts our principal business and holds
the assets and certain licenses, approvals and permits required for the

operation of our principal business.

As a result of the foregoing, Beijing TJYL (and its shareholders, as the case
may be) entered into certain contracts (the “Structured Contracts”) with Mr.
Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Wei Chunming and Mr. Wei Zhonghua (who are the
registered shareholders of Beijing TJYL and collectively the “Registered
Owners”) and Shenzhoufu (Beijing] Software Technology Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhoufu Software”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 22

June 2011, (which were subsequently amended on 30 June 2012).

The Structured Contracts comprise an Exclusive Optional Share Purchase
Agreement, Shareholder Voting Right Entrustment Agreement, Share
Pledge Agreement, Exclusive Intellectual Property Purchase Agreement
and Exclusive Consulting and Services Agreement (as defined in the
Prospectus), with Shenzhoufu Software, pursuant to which Shenzhoufu
Software has full financial and operational control of Beijing TJYL. The
series of Structured Contracts as a whole allow the financial performance
and economic benefits of the business of Beijing TJYL to be included in the
financial information of the Company as if the Company is the parent
company of Beijing TJYL. Pursuant to the Structured Contracts, Beijing
TJYL has an obligation to pay the consulting and technical supporting
services fees to Shenzhoufu Software and Shenzhoufu Software has legal
rights to retain such fees as its revenue, and the Company is able to acquire
the entire profit (including the retained earnings) of Beijing TJYL under the
terms of the Structured Contracts.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHE (A

In addition, the Registered Owners granted the individual appointed by
Shenzhoufu Software, to exercise their shareholders’ rights, including
without limitation, to declare, receive or decline the dividends or
distribution. In the event that the Registered Owners receive any dividends
or distribution of assets declared by Beijing TJYL, the Registered Owners
are required to return the dividend or distribution of assets so received to
Shenzhoufu Software within three days. Therefore, Shenzhoufu Software
controls the management and board of directors of Beijing TJYL and is able
to acquire the entire profit generated from Beijing TJYL under the
Structured Contracts. Details of the Structured Contracts are set out in the
123 to 140 of the

section headed “Structured Contracts” on pages

Prospectus.

Apart from the above, save as the investment in Beijing Zhangzhong
Technology Limited, there are no new arrangements pursuant to or under
the Structured Contracts [the "Contractual Arrangements”) entered into,
renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC operational entity
during the Year. There was no material change in the Contractual
Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the Year. During the Year,
none of the Structured Contracts mentioned above has been unwound as
none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of structured contracts
under the Contractual Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key consolidated financial information of Beijing
TJYL and its subsidiaries as prepared in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards during the two financial years ended 31 December
2017, respectively:
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Year ended 31 December
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2016 2017

(RMB'000) (RMB’000)

(AR®ETFT) (AR®T )

Revenue U == 30,596 26,413
Total assets EEE 250,765 233,264
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RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS AND
THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY
TO MITIGATE THE RISKS
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements Mitigation actions taken by the Company

EHeNREZAR FRRRRZEBITH

The PRC government may determine that the The Directors have been closely monitoring the latest development of
Contractual Arrangements are not in compliance with  the existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations [such as Draft
any existing or future applicable PRC laws or Foreign Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the
regulations Company, including Shenzhoufu Software and Beijing TJYL, are under
the control of PRC investors so as to comply with relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC.
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Certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may According to the amended and restated powers of attorney, the

not be enforceable under the PRC laws amended and restated share pledge agreements and the amended and

restated exclusive business cooperation agreements, the arbitration
tribunal may decide compensation for the equity interests or property
ownership of Chinese business entities or their shareholders, decide
enforceable remedy or demand a bankruptcy on Chinese business
entities or their shareholders for relevant business or enforceable
asset transfer. Any party is entitled to request the competent court to
execute the arbitration award when it comes into effect.
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EEEHE (A

Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

FHeNREZRAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company
KRNBRERMZERTE

The Group depends upon the Structured Contracts to
conduct its operations in the PRC and receive
payments from Beijing TJYL and its subsidiaries,
which may not be as effective in providing operational
control as direct ownership

AEBKBEBESHOURPRETEEERA
JE R MRS B Ko EL Y8 & 7)Y 5K Ut B A
RFELERFRITARLCNEEREBTRREAX

The Structured Contracts may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and a finding that the Group
owes additional taxes could substantially reduce the

Group's profitability

BBEGHAUREXTERRELS MHERE
RAEETHMBEIHINRT ARG AERERE
] ) 22 71 BE

The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable the Group to
receive the economic benefits derived by Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries through: (i} the Group’s potential right (if and when so
allowed under the applicable PRC laws) to acquire the equity interests
in Beijing TJYL; (ii] the business structure under which the revenue
generated by Beijing TJYL and its subsidiaries is substantially retained
by Shenzhoufu Software; and (i) Shenzhoufu Software’s right to control
the management and operation of, as well as, in substance, all of the
voting rights of Beijing TJYL. The Directors are also of the view that the
current dispute resolution measures under the Contractual
Arrangements are sufficient to preserve the rights of the Group under
the current PRC laws.
BRLRBESBEBUAT I RNERNER R WEUR B LR EB B
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Having considered [i] the tax compliance certificates issued by the
relevant tax authorities; [ii] that the Group has not encountered any
interference or encumbrances from any PRC tax authority or other
government authorities to the Contractual Arrangements; and [iii] that
neither Beijing TJYL nor Shenzhoufu Software was entitled to any tax
benefit and no favorable impact on the Group’s tax liabilities was
created when the Contractual Arrangements were first entered into in
2008, the Directors are of the view that the Contractual Arrangements
are not likely to be challenged by the PRC tax authority and other
government authorities.
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B 75 3 B EL fth KA B Y A 40 % B4R I A ) T 3B S DN (AT EE
B RN 200845F HIRETIL A K2 HFIG - A6 UK #EH5 Bk K 488 i
Mg B ERNZAEARENSE TEYAEENHRER
BEEANTFE EZ2RH ANTHTARUEKTEBRRERE
o R AT 4% B A &E o

MMBTHERKERAT —S—LEER 23



Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHE (A

Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

EHeNREZAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

FRRRRZEBITH

The Group relies on the licences held by Beijing TJYL
and its subsidiaries and the interruption of the Group’s
relationship with Beijing TJYL could adversely affect
the Group’s business

AEBEKBUERAEBBELENBRARRFTER
RoMmiE AEEELL R A BBE BRI
AEENXBERTHNEZE

There may be potential conflicts of interest between

the Group and the shareholders of Beijing TJYL

A B R R BB R IR 2 T e 17 V& 2 7
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For details of the risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements,
please refer to the section headed "Risk factors — Risks relating to the

Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.

To ensure sound and effective operation of the Group after the adoption
of the Contractual Arrangements, the relevant business units and
operation divisions of the Group have been reporting regularly, which
have been/will be no less frequent than on a monthly basis, to the
senior management of the Company on the compliance and
performance conditions under the Contractual Arrangements and other
related matters.
RERAEENEAGNRERAIBREIEE  AEENA
MEBBUREEDIE /MEHHEEXKAIIREA R AR
RABHREEEERCNRHBATZARLETER  UEEM
HEEE-

The Company has adopted the following measures to manage the
conflict of interests arising from the competing business and to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders:
ARRCHEMUTHEEAEEELERFUEBE ZNaFTREMR
EYE ik

(a)  the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed/will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the undertaking
given by Mr. Wei Zhonghua, Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Swift Well Limited
and Data King Limited (the "Controlling Shareholders”] under the
deed of non-competition (the "Deed of Non-competition”] entered
into between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders on 9
November 2013 regarding certain non-competition undertakings
(the "Non-competition Undertakings”) given by each of the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company (for itself and
as trustee for its subsidiaries): and

(@) BUFRTEFE MERFEMRPELE RIFLE
Swift Well Limited 5 Data King Limited ([ 4% f% I% 3 |) & <7 1R 18
ARAEZFERBREN2013F 11 AIA RS ZERBREIIAKRLD A
(BRERGREREMNBRARANEFEANRREARTZIET
PREAG(TREFEABDRATLO I RFRIE (T HRF R
B4 THARONIBL &

(b)  the Controlling Shareholders have undertaken to provide all
information requested by the Company which is necessary for the
annual review by the independent non-executive Directors and
the enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition;

b) ERERCAHREAAEARANEREWBYFANTESE
TFEEHRATIBRFREMEBLENER

ERAANRHZERFER F2HBRER
(AREZ-—mERtanElnER ] —& -
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. Except for the new business activity, being the provision of
micro financing facilitating service, there was no significant change in their

activities during the Year.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified as the
executive Directors. During the Year, the Group established, among others,
new business segment, resulting in a change in composition of reportable
operating segments. The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different services and requires different business strategies.
The Group's service lines identified as reportable operating segments are
as follow:

i

) Online transaction services (including provision of information

technology services and advertising services);

(i) Micro financing facilitating services [new segment during the year

(including provision of financing guarantee service)).

The executive Directors regularly review revenue and operating results
derived from the two operating segments.

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’s operations are

located in the PRC.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CLIENTS

There was no single customer which contributed to 10% or more revenue to

the Group’s revenue for the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company at 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated

financial statements on pages 75 to 164.

The board of Directors (the “Board”] has resolved not to recommend the

payment of a final dividend in respect of the Year (2016: nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
PLACING

The net proceeds received by the Company from the Placing, after deducting
the underwriting fees and other relevant fees and expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$48.301 million. For details of the use of proceeds, please
refer to the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALIZATION

The Group had no interest capitalization for the Year (2016: Nil.

BANK BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank borrowings of RMB61,000,000

secured by pledged bank deposits of USD9,950,000 (equivalent to
RMB65,015,000] (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity and in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's distributable reserve was
approximately RMB214,491,000 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised] of the Cayman lIslands (2016:
RMB206,382,000).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company [the "Shareholders”) by reason of their
holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in, or exercising
of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate mobile top-up transaction amount from the five
largest mobile top-up agents accounted for approximately 10.4% (2016:
12.7%) of the Group's total mobile top-up amount, and mobile top-up
transaction amount from the largest mobile top-up agent of the Group
accounted for approximately 4.7% (2016: 6.4%) of the Group’s total mobile
top-up transaction amount.

For the Year, the aggregate transaction amount from the five largest online
game operators accounted for approximately 51.3% (2016: 60.5%) of the
Group's total amount of online transaction service, and transaction amount
from the largest online game operator of the Group accounted for
approximately 8.9% (2016: 17.2%) of the Group's total amount of online
transaction service.

For the Year, the aggregate purchasing amount from the five largest mobile
top-up service distributors accounted for approximately 82.1% (2016: 77.8%)
of the Group’s total mobile top-up purchasing amount, and the purchasing
amount from the largest mobile top-up service distributor of the Group
accounted for approximately 25.4% (2016: 35.6%) of the Group's total mobile
top-up purchasing amount.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”), or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital] had a beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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EEEHE (A

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the
Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities during
the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised any
rights in relation to convertible securities, options, warrants or similar

rights during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company [the "Articles of Association”], or laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme [the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the success of the Group’'s
operations. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on ¢
November 2013, the principal terms of which are set out below:

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for the Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”] to any of
the following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

(a)  any director, employee or officer of any company in the Group who is
employed by any company in the Group (whether full time or part
time) (the "Employee”], consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company
in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or

(b)  the trustee of any trust, the beneficiary of which or any discretionary

trust, the discretionary objects of which include any Director,

employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,

partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or
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EEEHE (A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(c]

a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or

contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

Maximum Number of Shares

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d)

Subject to paragraphs (b] to (d] below, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not, in
aggregate, exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the Listing Date [the "Scheme Mandate Limit") unless
approved by the Shareholders pursuant to paragraph [c) below.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit.

Subject to paragraphs (c] and (d) below, the Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by the Shareholders in general meeting from time to
time provided always that the Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of such renewal by Shareholders in general meeting. Upon such
renewal, all Options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company [including those
exercised, outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company) prior to the approval of such renewal shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit as

renewed.

Subject to paragraph (d] below, the Board may seek separate
Shareholders” approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond
the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval is sought.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
involving the issue or grant of Options or similar rights over Shares or
other securities by the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. Notwithstanding anything
contrary to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, no Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being
exceeded.
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Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised and
outstanding Options] in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Any grant of further Options above this limit shall be

subject to the following requirements:

(a)  approval of the Shareholders at general meeting, with such Eligible
Participant and its associates abstaining from voting;

(b)  a circular in relation to the proposal for such further grant having
been sent by the Company to its Shareholders with such information
from time to time as required by the GEM Listing Rules

(c)  the number and terms of the Options to be granted to such proposed
grantee shall be fixed before the Shareholders” approval mentioned in

paragraph (a) above; and

(d)  for the purpose of calculating the minimum exercise price for the
Shares in respect of the further Options proposed to be so granted,
the date of Board meeting for proposing such grant of further Options

shall be taken as the date of offer of such Options.

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules] of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates, would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to
be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of
such grant; and [ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of HK$5.0 million, such further
grant of the Options shall be subject to prior approval of the Shareholders
with such person and his associates abstaining from voting in favour at the
general meeting.

Any grant of Options to any Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules] of the Company, or any of
their respective associates under the Share Option Scheme is subject to the
prior approval of the independent non-executive Directors (excluding the
independent non-executive Director who or whose associate is the grantee

of an Option).

30 China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017

BERERSRENERLR
BAERSEEATERERBRE(BER

ERNREAPBEASTERRITERERE) S
BHROTESEZTORMAE THEBAX

NRRAIBBEITROB 1% #E—HREBEILR
BRI EAER - BB TIHE

a) RBEERREEESAIFBELE  HE
BMAER2EEREBEABARER
R

bl ARFRCAEBRTE-—DAEBEZRR
HENERENBK EPEHABCEM L
mRAARRENER

) BRTEBEFARANBREHER
Bk AR ERAS £ 35 (a) BOPT I /O AR

HEMEE: &

(d METEEARUBREOBIINEREUR
ﬁ%ﬂxT’ﬁE’]Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁa'i% ﬁﬁ
cHERELEHEENERE2H A
?ﬁgflﬁngﬁﬁﬂxfgﬁ}ﬂxﬁaﬂﬂ"

WmMARABEEZRR(EE ZGEM LM 8

RBUFATESTKETAFRESTEZHEA

REFAMERE SESRHEELBEH(2E

ER)LENEABEARNZEALERERE

BHNERE(BEETE CaE#EREAT

FHRE ERHTENEBITREEITTZ

BAANTHRG (6B AR TREBEEEITR

M EI0.1%  RGVERE T B B8 A2 B FI 8 &Y

BHRERTFRONBTE  GFEEBR

S0ESBL Pl REEREASRRESL

HE(MZATREBEARERRRAS L

WEKE)ZTAEE -

RIEBREFEETFARAREMNES T2
THRABRTERRCEZRGEM EMmRA)
FEMREZREZHEANTABERE A
FRIFNTEE (TN EBRABREARAN
BIYFRTESHEBEA)FLRIER 7
AERE -



Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHE (A

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine,
which shall not exceed 10 years from the date the Option is deemed to have

been granted subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board and notified to the relevant Eligible

Participants and shall not be less than the highest of:

(a)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business

of dealing in securities (the "Business Day");

(b)  an amount equivalent to the average of the closing prices of a Share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant
Option; and

(c)  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years

commencing on the Listing Date.

No Options were granted since the Listing Date. Therefore, no Options were
exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the Year and there were no
outstanding Options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2017.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors and senior management receive compensation in the form of
salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses by reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, their time commitment and the
performance of the Group. The Group also reimburses them for expenses
which are necessarily and reasonably incurred for the provision of services
to the Group or executing their functions in relation to the operations of the
Group. The Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors and senior management by
reference to, among other things, market level of salaries paid by
comparable companies, the respective responsibilities of the Directors and

the performance of the Group.
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The remuneration committee of the Company (the "Remuneration
Committee”) reviews the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors and senior management by reference to their responsibilities,
work load, the time devoted to the Group, and performance of the Group.
The Directors and senior management may also receive Options to be

granted under the Share Option Scheme.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD

The Directors as of 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report are

named as follows:

Executive Directors

Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer]?™

Tang Bin

Non-executive Directors

Wei Zhonghua (Chairman)*
Li Jianguang
Lan Xi

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Yang Haoran™"
ARIN

Hou Dong
He Qinghua”

A Member of the Audit Committee
R: Member of the Remuneration Committee
N: Member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2] of the Articles of Association, Mr. Li
Jianguang, Mr. Lan Xi and Mr. He Qinghua will retire from office by rotation
and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM").
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHE (A

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out
on pages 16 to 18 of this annual report. Directors’ other particulars are

contained elsewhere in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company on 1 May 2015, which will continue thereafter unless and until
it is terminated by the Company or the Director giving to the other not less
than 30 days’ prior notice in writing. Each of the executive Directors is
entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the Board.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors and the INEDs have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of two years. The non-executive
Directors were not entitled to receive any director fees or other
remuneration. The annual emolument of an INED for the Year was
HK$60,000, and other two INEDs were HK$80,000, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Connected Transaction” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors had a
significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or its holdings company or any of its subsidiaries or

fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors was
considered to have interests in a business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest, as required to be disclosed under Rule 11.04 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts [except for the executive Directors’ services contracts and the
Structured Contracts) concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

Review of our business and performance

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group's business is set out in the "Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis™ of this annual
report.

Compliance with laws and regulations
During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

Particulars of important events

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Significant Events After Reporting
Period” under "Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the Year.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to nurturing its staff to care about and protect the
environment. It conducts its business in a manner that balances the

environment and economic needs.

The Group complies with all relevant environment regulations. It works with
its partners including customers and suppliers in a concerted effort to
operate in an environmentally responsible manner by making concerted
efforts to be energy-efficient and to practise “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”.
Among others, the Group has taken the following initiatives:

. uses recycle print paper and toilet paper.

J adjusts the heat supply system to low settings during the winter
vacation period.

Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance are contained

in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 55 to 67 of

this annual report.
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Stakeholders’ engagement

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us
to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage our
resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community

development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers,

workforce, suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has the
Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, all Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted by
or about the execution of their duties. Such permitted indemnity provision
has been in force throughout the Year. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors” and officers” liability insurance coverage for the

directors and officers of the Group.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into the Non-
competition Undertakings with the Controlling Shareholders on 9 November
2013 regarding certain non-competition undertakings given by each of the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company (for itself and as trustee
for its subsidiaries). A summary of the principal terms of the Non-
Competition Undertakings is set out in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

During the Year, the INEDs had reviewed the compliance with the
undertakings given by each of the Controlling Shareholders (including a
letter of compliance with the undertakings issued by the Controlling
Shareholder) and concluded with the confirmation by each of the Controlling
Shareholders that neither the Controlling Shareholders nor their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had engaged in any
business that competed or might compete with the business of the Group or

have any other conflict of interests with the Group.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “"Connected Transaction” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, there was no material interest,
either directly, in any contract of significant (whether for the provision of
services to the Company or not] to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 29 August 2017, Prajna Technology Limited (“Prajna Technology’), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Sanbao Star Limited (Sanbao
Star], a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is owned as to approximately 72.8%, 13.1% and 14.1% by Mr. Sun
Jiangtao, Mr. Tang Bing (both Directors] and three other independent third
parties entered in to the share transfer agreement 1 and share transfer
agreement 2, pursuant to which Prajna Technology conditionally agreed to
acquire and Sanbao Star conditionally agreed to sell approximately 4.5%
and 20.7% equity interest in Goopal Group and Joy Credit Online Limited, at
a consideration of US$0.3 million (equivalent HK$2.3 million) and
approximately US$0.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.1 million),
respectively. Please refer the announcement of the Company dated 29
August 2017 for further details.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Notes 35(a) and 35(c] to the
consolidated financial statements constitute continuing connected
transactions exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the transactions were in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Shenzhoufu Software, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into certain Structured Contracts with Beijing TJYL and its equity
holders, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the chairman of the Board and a non-
executive Director and Mr. Wei Chunming. Details of the Structured
Contracts are set out in the “Structured Contracts” paragraph under the
section headed “Connected Transactions” on pages 262 to 265 of the
Prospectus and the section headed "Structured Contract” on pages 20 to 24
of this annual report. The transactions (consulting and technical supporting
services) under the Structured Contracts carried out during the Year were
approximately RMB3,000,000 and the amounts have been eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, Beijing TJYL is a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Structured
Contracts are continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The INEDs have reviewed the Structured Contracts and confirmed that: (1)
the transactions carried out during the Year had been in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structured Contracts and had been operated
so that the revenue generated by Beijing TJYL had been substantially
retained by Shenzhoufu Software; (2) no dividends or other distributions had
been made by Beijing TJYL to the holders of its equity interests which were
not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group; and (3] all
contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and
Beijing TJYL for the Year were in the ordinary and usual business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable, or advantageous
so far as the Group was concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

BDO Limited ("BDQ"), Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong, the
Company's independent auditor (the “Independent Auditor”), was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO has issued
a letter to the Board containing its findings and unqualified conclusions in
respect of the Group’s continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong (the "SFO"]) which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQJ, or (b] pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register as referred to therein,
or (c] pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

R2017F 128318 AAREZEETRFTETH
AERAARRETMEBREIE(TEERSE
BERENEEFLFRPBEGRN(ESRPE

1&BI]) EXVER) MR h ~ BN (D R EH T &
£ (&) IR & F ﬁ&%f%%ﬁw%%mﬁ%
7 B3R E E M E AN RN T B A FT )R a RO%
B (BERESR ﬁ&%fhﬂm%ﬁMXWE
ES R BEENER KAR)  H(b)IRIEE

D E N B2 B AZKIEATIENES
fitt %RMEWGEMimnﬁﬂH%5aaissmxa
MERRNA RN ESEARNT

Rt zirR

Number of Appropriate
issued percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held the issued Shares "*?
EE AT
FHERT ERTREG
=] B REtE IR 17 8 SN A
Mr. Wei Zhonghua Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 1] 128,614,800 26.79%
B ERE 22 il B A A 2l
Mr. Sun Jiangtao Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2 143,040,000 29.80%
LB EE RS E a R Y
Mr. Tang Bin Beneficial owner
o EREAA 588,000 0.12%
Notes: B 3% -
1. Details of the interest in the Company held by Swift Well Limited are set outin 1. Swift Well Limited R R R Bl 5 Atz 2 F 18

the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

2. Details of the interest in the Company held by Data King Limited are set out in
the section headed "Substantial Shareholders” and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2017

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors had
any interests or short positions in the shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND ]
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified to
any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) which/who had 5% or more interests in the Shares and the
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underlying Shares as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the ~ A BERIN EEB T -
SFO were as follows:
Number of Appropriate
issued percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of the interests Shares held issued Shares "7
LR N
BT BITRAD
RERE A 50/ EEtE IR 47 8 BHBED T
SWIFT WELL LIMITED Beneficial owner M¢") 128,614,800 26.79%
Eé%ﬁ/\(mrém
DATA KING LIMITED Beneficial owner "¢ 143,040,000 29.80%
fgi ﬁTﬁfﬁ ﬁ /\(Wém
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Beneficial owner M¢? 81,122,700 16.90%
FUNDIIL.P. ExmAa A=
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Interest of a controlled corporation ™ 81,122,700 16.90%
FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. R;tlEE e s
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Interest of a controlled corporation ™ 87,757,200 18.28%
GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. RmtlEE s
Ho Chising Interest of a controlled corporation ™ 87,757,200 18.28%
292 )2 1B A 2 )
Zhou Quan Interest of a controlled corporation ™ 87,757,200 18.28%
EES 212 ) 1B A 2 )
Notes: B &

1. SWIFT WELL LIMITED is owned as to 95% by Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the Chairman 1.
and a non-executive Director, and 5% by Mr. Wei Chunming. Under the SFO,
Mr. Wei Zhonghua is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which SWIFT

WELL LIMITED is interested.
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2. DATA KING LIMITED is wholly owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun
Jiangtao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which DATA KING
LIMITED is interested.

3. IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il L.P. which owned 81,122,700 Shares is an
exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman Islands. Its general
partner is IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. while the
general partner of IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. is
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. which is a limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Moreover, IDG-ACCEL CHINA
GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is the general partner of IDG CHINA
INVESTORS Il L.P. which owned 6,634,500 Shares. Under the SFO, IDG-ACCEL
CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il L.P. is interested,
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II L.P.
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. are interested.

4. Ho Chising is a controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of IDG-
ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il
ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

5. Zhou Quan is the other controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND
GP I ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

6. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, no party had informed the Company that he/she/it
had interest or short positions in any issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or the chief executive of the Company or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the

Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each INED, namely Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. He Qinghua,
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this report,
the Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the
issued Shares were held by the public] as required under Rule 17.38A of the

GEM Listing Rule as at the date of this report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Lego Corporate Finance
Limited, except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between
the Company and the compliance adviser and becoming effective on 19
January 2016, neither the compliance adviser nor its directors, employees
or close associates had any interests in relation to the Company or any
member of the Group (including interest in the securities of the Company or
any member of the Group, and options or rights to subscribe for such
securities) during the Year, which is required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to section headed “Significant Events After Reporting Period”

under the "Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s principal corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 43 to 54 of this annual
report.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board (the "Audit Committee”] consists of three
members, namely Mr. He Qinghua and Mr. Hou Dong, both are INEDs and
Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a non-executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. It has reviewed with management the

audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

There has been no change of the Independent Auditor in the past three
years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have
been audited by BDO which will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having approved by the Board upon
the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint BDO as
the Independent Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Sun Jiangtao
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

23 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

It is the belief of the board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” and
the “Board”, respectively) that good corporate governance plays a vital part
in maintaining the success of the Company. The Board and the senior
management are dedicated to establishing and maintaining a high level of
corporate governance. Various measures have been adopted to enhance the
management efficiency of the Company and thus to protect the interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”), the Company had
applied the principles and complied with all applicable code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”] and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange” and the "GEM Listing Rules”, respectively:

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold the 2018 AGM in Hong Kong so as to establish a good
communication channel with the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”] as its own code of conduct for dealings in the securities of the

Company by the Directors.

Following a specific enquiry of all Directors made by the Company, each of
them confirmed that he had complied with the Required Standard of
Dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the

Directors during the Year.

THE BOARD

During the Year, the Board comprised of two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer] and Mr. Tang Bin, three non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wei Zhonghua (Chairman), Mr. Li Jianguang
and Mr. Lan Xi and three INEDs, namely Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong
and Mr. He Qinghua.

Relationship

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors. The biographical details of each of the Directors are
set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
of this annual report.
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Roles

The two executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performances of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”] and
are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by

directing and supervising its affairs.

The three INEDs are responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial
and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as providing a balance
in the Board in order to effectively exercise independent judgement on the
corporate actions of the Company so as to protect Shareholders’ interest

and overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs and at all times met
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at-least one-third of the Board members and at least one of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and the Group’'s affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value through granting authority to the audit
committee (the "Audit Committee”], nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee [the "Remuneration Committee”)
of the Board. The Board approves and monitors the development and
implementation of the Group’s business policies, strategic decisions and
directions. The Board is also responsible for reviewing monthly financial
information as well as reviewing and approving quarterly, interim and
annual results, annual budget, and other business matters and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”). In addition, it performs the corporate
governance functions. The Board may from time to time delegate certain
functions to senior management of the Group if and when considered
appropriate. The senior management is mainly responsible for the execution
of the business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and

assigned to it from time to time.
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The Board and its Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’'s expenses in order to better
discharge their supervisory duties to the Company.

In accordance with Rule A.1.8 of the CG Code, appropriate insurance cover
has been arranged by the Company in order to provide protection in respect
of legal action against its Directors and senior management.

Meeting

During the Year, the Board held four regular meetings each at

approximately quarterly interval. In addition, special Board meetings are
held when required. Formal notice for each proposed regular meeting are
given at least 14 days before the day of the meeting. With regard to special
Board meetings, notices are issued within a reasonable period. The meeting
agenda and all the accompanying documents relating to the proposed
Board meeting are sent to each Director at least three days before the day
of the proposed meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to
review relevant documents and prepare for the meeting. Directors can
attend the Board meeting in person or through other electronic means of

communication.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) or his
delegate is responsible for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for the
Directors’ inspection. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any Directors and
their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) with a material
interest in the transactions to be discussed at the Board meetings will
abstain from voting on resolutions approving such transactions and will not

be counted in the quorum at meetings.
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Attendances of Meetings HEEBEZER

Four Board meetings, four Audit Committee meetings, one meeting foreach RAAEFEERNHLBITLREE S @ H LRBEX
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee and an ié-\ 2EE IRFHNEEESE  1XIEEZE
AGM were held during the Year. Attendances of these meetings by the E@&@ZNIARERAFAE -EFTHFEZE

&
=
Directors are set out below: THRIBERWT

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

BEHESE FERLEEZEHR
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
B2 BRERBF
EEHE BExyg £Z88 FMHZEE RBRZEY RE
Executive Directors HITESH
Mr. Sun Jiangtao FIERE 4/4 N/ATNE A 11 11 11
Mr. Tang Bin JE W, 5 A 4/4 N/ATNE A N/ANE A N/ANE A 1/1*
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Wei Zhonghua BpELELE A A N/ATSE A N/ATSE A 1/1*
Mr. Li Jianguang TENEL 4/4 N/ATSE A N/ATSE A N/ATSE A 0/1
Mr. Lan Xi BALE 44 N/AZ 3 A N/AZ i A N/A i 0/1
INEDs BUIHHMTEE
Mr. Hou Dong BREE 4/4 4/4 11 11 1/1*
Mr. He Qinghua fa] B EE S 4 4/4 4/4 N/ATNE N/ATNE /1%
Mr. Yang Haoran s R L E 4/4 N/ATNE 11 11 0/1
Note: B 7
* The Directors participated in AGM via teleconferening. * EXRAEESRL2ERRBFAE -

L6 China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017



Corporate Governance Report (Continued]

TEERRE (&)

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. The Company is
dedicated to arrange appropriate induction for the continuous professional
development for all Directors at the Company's expenses to develop,

replenish and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company from time to time provides briefings to all Directors to
develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense.

During the Year, all Directors, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Tang Bin, Mr.
Wei Zhonghua, Mr Li Jianguang, Mr. Lan Xi, Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong
and Mr.
development by attending conferences and internal training as regards

He Qinghua have participated in continuous professional
corporate governance, laws, regulations and the GEM Listing Rules, and
reading materials relevant to their duties, responsibilities and the Group’'s

business in order to develop, refresh and update their knowledge and skills.

Training records for the Year have been provided by all Directors to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Wei Zhonghua, and the chief executive officer of the
Company is Mr. Sun Jiangtao. The roles of the Chairman and chief executive

are separated and exercised by different individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors and the INEDs has entered into a letter

of appointment for a term of two years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of reference, three Board
Committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’'s affairs. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient

resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each Board Committee are in line with
the GEM Listing Rules and they are posted on the respective websites of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”] and the

Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 November 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other things, to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually, make recommendations to
the Board regarding the appointment of Directors and candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board; and assess the independence of INEDs. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Yang
Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Yang Haoran is the

chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Year, a meeting was held by the Nomination Committee to review
the structure, composition of the Board and the Board diversity policy; make
recommendation on the re-appointment of the retiring Directors and assess
the independence of INEDs. Attendance of the meeting has been disclosed

on page 46 of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 9 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among other things, to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group
and to ensure that none of the Directors determines his own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Hou
Dong, Mr. Yang Haoran and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Hou Dong is the chairman

of the Remuneration Committee.
During the Year, a meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee to

review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management.
Attendance of the meeting has been disclosed on page 46 of this report.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are set out in Notes 10, 11 and 35(b] to the consolidated

financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration

EENARTNSREBEABHFHZFE
A EIRRM L0 117035(b) A

BEMEEATAZTAIETEBISE &

of the member of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose & ¥ A B (& $ B o) 2 F JE 5 B EF 1S E )
particulars are contained in the section headed "Directors and Senior RAFEZFERE(EENSNERAED
Management Profiles” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out | —&1A - FrEM&EE L T -
below:
Number of
individuals
Remuneration band N E AE
Less than HK$1,000,000 4> 11,000,000% 7T Nil£%

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 9 November 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee were revised and adopted on 30
December 2015 to include additional responsibility in relation to the risk
management system arising from the Stock Exchange’s proposal on the
risk management and internal control under the CG Code applicable to
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The primary duties

of the Audit Committee, among other things, are:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of external auditor;

(b)  to review the financial statements and provide material advice in

respect of financial reporting;
(c]  tooversee internal control procedures of the Company;

(d)  to review arrangements for employees to raise concerns about

financial reporting improprieties;

(e)  to review the financial control, risk management and internal control
system of the Company;

(f) to discuss about the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed its duty

to have effective systems; and

(g)  to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings.
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At present, the Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. He
Qinghua and Mr. Hou Dong, both being INEDs and Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a
non-executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. Attendance of the
meetings has been disclosed on page 46 of this report.

The Audit Committee meetings reviewed (i) the first and third quarterly and
the interim results for 2017; (i) the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016;
adopted by the Group; [iv] assessed the risk management and internal

(iii) the accounting principles and practice

control systems; (v] reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit
function; and (vi] recommended to the Board for considering the re-
appointment of BDO Limited, certified public accountants as the Company’s
independent auditor [the “Independent Auditor”) at the 2017 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval. The members of the Audit
Committee considered that the results were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules and sufficient

disclosure has been made.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy and discussed all

measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity

perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
of the Company, which are set out in relevant written terms of reference.
The Board, among other matters, has reviewed this corporate governance
report in discharge of its corporate governance functions, ensuring

compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for the Year amounted
to HK$560,000 (2015: HK$559,000). The amount of non-audit service fee was
HK$178,000 (2015: HK$112,000), primarily relating to the disposal of shares
in Leyu Limited in return for the consideration shares in Chong Sing
Holdings FinTech Group Limited.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and ensures that the financial statements have
adopted the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
complied with the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the GEM Listing Rules. The Board is also responsible for the keeping of
appropriate accounting records that reasonably and accurately disclose the
financial position of the Group at any time.

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibilities for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board is also responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the

Shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Internal Audit Department has been established to, amongst others {i]
review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems at least once every financial year; (b) carry out annual risk
assessment on each audit area; and (c) devise a yearly audit plan according

to their risk ratings.
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The systems include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and are designed for the Group to identify and manage the
significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeqguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and

in the achievement of the Group's business objectives.

Appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the risks. No
major issue was raised for improvement.

During the Year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and the Group's internal
audit function through discussion with the Audit Committee on audit
findings and control issue and considered them effective and adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the GEM
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the GEM Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

U the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure
by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to the
public through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or

inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group's affairs, so that
only the executive Directors, Company Secretary and investor
relations officers are authorized to communicate with parties outside
the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Kwok Siu Man ("Mr. Kwok”), who has been
appointed by the Board since 9 November 2013 and has been so nominated
by Boardroom Corporate Services [HK) Limited ("Boardroom”] under an
engagement letter made between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting is
Mr. Chen Tao, the Finance Manager of the Company, in relation to corporate
secretarial matters. As Mr. Kwok was first appointed as the company
secretary of a Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in
1991 and has been acting in such capacity for a number of other reputable
companies listed on the Stock Exchange at material times since then, he is
not required to have at least 15 hours of relevant professional training in the
Year under the GEM Listing Rules. However, despite such exemption, he
delivered/attended relevant seminars organised by professional and other
bodies for over 15 hours during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, Shareholders
holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company can convene
an EGM by depositing a requisition in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring the convening of the EGM.
The written requisition shall be deposited to the Company Secretary at 31/F,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for any
enquiries in relation to the Group by contacting the Group’s Investor
Relations team at investor@shenzhouxing.com.cn. Upon receipt of the
enquiries, the Investor Relations team will forward Shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board, Board committees or management as
appropriate. Alternatively, Shareholders can put forward any proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting.
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TEERBE (&)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the statutes and the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
Company may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an

additional director.

A Shareholder may propose a person [(other than himself/herself] for
election as a Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’'s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary:

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director; and

2. a notice in writing by that person of his/her willingness to be elected
as a Director, together with that person’s information as required to
be disclosed under rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

Such notices shall be lodged no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election at least seven (7)
clear days before the date of the general meeting. The period for lodgement

of such notices shall be at least seven (7] clear days in length.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company its Memorandum and Articles of Association. During the Year, no

amendments were made to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERERBRSE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the second ESG report by the Group, highlighting its environmental,
social, and governance performance. The report contents and mode are
disclosed with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in
Appendix 20 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited is a high-tech digital technology
company, principally engaged in providing online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers. The Group
offers online transaction platform which could enable online game users to
pay their online game accounts through mobile top-up credits by operating
its self-developed Shenzhoufu System and cooperating with online game
operators in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"). The Group uses the
mobile top-up credits received from online game users to top up mobile
subscription accounts. This ESG report has not changed comparing to that
of the previous year, it still covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the Beijing Operation
Office and its main business throughout the financial year from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

During the reporting year, the Group has conducted quantitative surveys of
stakeholders; group directors, senior and middle management members,
employees, and other stakeholders have completed the questionnaire. The
Group will consider adding more different types of external stakeholders
(such as customers, suppliers, etc.) to increase the sample diversity of
survey in coming years.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RiR 2 REREE (A

This year's questionnaire covers a total of 16 environmental and social
issues, and the stakeholders rate each topic according to what they care
about and thought is the most significant for the development of the Group.
The purpose of this questionnaire is to disclose the environmental and
social issues that the stakeholders care about and think are the most
significant for the development of the Group. It can also be used by the
Group to set future management priorities and strategic directions.
According to the results of the survey, after averaging the opinions of
different stakeholders, the two most significant topics are Customer Service

and Anti-corruption. Other substantive environmental and social issues

include:
o Emissions
. Wastewater and Garbage

J Occupational Health and Safety
o Supply Chain Management
. Intellectual Property

o Customer Data Protection

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

Apart from the above stakeholders, the Group also welcomes other
stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental, social and governance
approach and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via mail to 6/F, Taiyue Park No. 1 Building, Haidian District,
Beijing, China.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BR #EgREREE (A)

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

Mission

The Group is dedicated to providing the clients with the best and fastest
online transaction platform and the public with the easy and convenient
transaction methods so as to promote the development of online transaction
in China, to boost the inter-connection development of various industries,
and to contribute to the real economy driven by the virtual economy.

Vision on Environment, Social and Governance

The online transaction is supposed to significantly reduce the transactional
costs consumed by the offline transaction, as well as the transportation
cost, energy and time so as to help the emission reduction on the Earth.

The good working conditions shall be offered to employees so that each of
them is capable of exploiting their advantages to the full at China Binary
Sale Technology Limited. The transaction service shall be provided to the

society to boost the economic development.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the culture of good governance, the fair
working environment and honest corporate administration are supposed to
be established.

A. ENVIRONMENT

The Group is not directly involved in production activities, does not
have related air emissions, nor does it have related water quality and
land pollutions. Carbon emissions from its major activities are
indirect emissions from energy consumption. The Beijing office area
of the Group is 1,630m? and its operating activities and business

account for 100% of its emissions.

Since the Group does not have physical production, employees are the
Group’'s most important asset; the employees’ input and knowledge
output are closely related to the Group’s economic, environmental,
and social impacts; the relative strength of environmental data will be
calculated according to the total number of employees and averaged
to each person.

Emissions

The Group’s commercial vehicles consume petrol, and the
combustion of petrol produces several types of air emissions,
including nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx) and particulate
matter (PM). The SOx emissions generated by automobiles are 0.21
kg. As the number of kilometres traveled by the vehicles is not
available, the nitrogen oxides and particulates emitted by the vehicles

are not calculated during the reporting year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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RIR -HERENAR

Emissions of greenhouse gases include Category 1, Category 2, and
Category 3 (waste paper landfill, sewage treatment, employee travel,

etc.), the related emission estimates are smaller than Category 1 and

wE(E)

Category 2 and are not included in the total amount.

Energy Use and Intensity

Direct Energy Class

N

/m

BOERERErE — hEi —
= (BEAEE  )5KER  BIEK
Z)EEE A EREGE - LR 8

LB REFABE -

HEREAREZE

Consumption in 2017

Consumption Intensity in 2017
(Average consumption per person)

HEEERER 2017 HEE 017EHEEE (FPHEAEES)
Fleet Petrol 14,200 L 103.65 L per person
B 14,2007 & A103.65F
Electricity 138,880 KWh 1,013.70 KWh per person
W 138,880 F I, B B A1,013.70F L&

Greenhouse Gas Emission

Scope of Greenhouse
Gas Emission

Emission Sources

BERBIEK

Consumption

Emission
(in tonnes of CO,e)

Total Emission
(in percentage)

HHE BENRE
BERBHEREE B BUROR HEE (M-S{REE) (Bo k)
Scope 1
Direct Emission Petrol consumed by 14,200 L 32.26 23%

Company Owned Fleet

& E—
BEHN RR BB GORFE 2T 14,200F+ 32.26 23%
Scope 2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 138.880 KWh 105.52 77%
O
k37137 BIEME 138,880 F KL F 105.52 77%
Total Emission 1 137.78 100%
By E 137.78 100%
Notes: The aforementioned methods for calculating the emission volume of Hr: UEBEREA_-_SREEH) N

green gas (in tonnes of CO.e) refer to the international commonly-

used standards and the by-laws and guides of Hong Kong Exchanges

and Clearing Limited. The emission coefficient of electricity is
calculated using 0.7958 tons of CO, emission equivalent/MWh of North

China Power Grid.
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2017 Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity

(Tonnes of CO, equivalent

emissions per person)

01T BEERBHEREE
(FHBASERE_SthER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE -8k ERHBE (E)

2017 Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity
(Tonnes of CO, equivalent
emissions per square metre)
2017 EERBHHREE
(P FRERE_S{REE

Greenhouse Gas Emission
BE R

In terms of environmental issues, the Group’s largest expenditure
and emissions come from the power consumption of office. The Group
will continue to strengthen the staff's awareness of energy

conservation and emission reduction in 2018 and expect to have new

energy efficiency results in the next reporting year.

Policies and Efforts in Reducing Emissions and

Wastes

Reducing Emissions

New Related Policies, Efforts and Outcomes of Year 2017
WOHERYFEE

2017 FHIBHEBBEK - B h RER

0.085
0.085

1.006
1.006

ERESEIFE SESTANIE R
WEEERBAZTE NN EE - EFH K
fE2018F EHENAE THEEREES
HBBEAET —HREFEEFTOSE
R 3K

BOBGBRMBERYHIERRR
g1

Reducing Wastes

New Related Policies, Efforts and Outcomes of Year 2017
WAOBEYHE

017 FHIBHEBEBEK - Bh RER

The air conditioners at the office are all energy-efficient.

MAEANEZER 2 REEEEN -

In 2017, the Group continues selecting energy-conservation
electronic products preferentially (such as those with
national energy efficiency labels), and we will actively
consider the policy of purchasing energy-conservation
products in the financial year of 2018. In 2017, the
Purchasing Department has already met to discuss the
feasibility of formal selection of energy-saving products into
the company’s procurement policy, and the later
arrangements will be followed up.
WVFEEBEERELENHHEEFER (WBERENX
SHRER)  RMSBEEEER08FUVBRFE  KEE
FiREE m E M AR R B B IR B R » 2017 F 8RB 2B
FELREImBRERMEEREAMALRRRMNEK
BHEROAITE  BRELFBHERE -

In addition, the culture of energy conservation is popular at
the Group, which encourages each employee to turn off the
electric equipment (including computer and calculator)
before he/she leaves the office.
SHOKEBBAOIRESNEXL SLETHANQER
HemERERE BRTER-

The Group adopts ink cartridge recycling policy and
purchases recycled ink cartridges.
SERBITHE2amREE TEERSLEES -

For excess electronic equipment and related electronic
waste, the Group currently stores such stuff in warehouses
and has not disposed of any.
UNZHMNETREMMBBETRERY  SEBAE
TERFERREE  RETERERRE -
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Amount of Non-hazardous and Hazardous Waste,

and Treatment Methods

The waste generated by the Group is office-related, without any

production-related sewage or solid waste.

Non-hazardous Waste

Amount of Waste in 2017

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE -8k ERHRE (E)

BERBERERVEREE
75 3%

AEBEEBEDHRBANEE BEWM
£ EMRRS K E R o

Treatment Method

EEREY 017EBEEE BEEHA

Office Paper 12,000 KG Disposal to landfill
AR 12,0002 fr EEIHEER
Hazardous Waste Amount of Waste in 2017 Treatment Method
BEEEY 2017 EEEE BEEAR

Ink Cartridge

T2

Old Electronic Products
EEFEMm

Resource Use

The Group is a software developer with no significant amount of
resource consumed. The aspect of resource consumption only
engages in general office operations. The office building is supplied by
the municipal water supply, and does not use any natural resources,
such as surface water or groundwater, and there are no problems
with access to water. During the reporting period, a total of 1,794
tonnes of water has been consumed. Besides, totally 12,000 kg of
paper has been used during the reporting period, mainly for the
printing purpose. The Group has no substantial production and

All reused, no direct disposal

ERNEFLOM REEEREE

No direct disposal

AEEERER

operation, thus no packaging materials have been used.

Resource Use

Consumption in 2017

Designated recycling collectors recycle the used ink
cartridges of printers which shall be reused for filling
toner

BEDKEEKITERES  EEBRNEER

Self storage

BERREFK

BERER

AEEBD—FERHEREQAR  TEEM
MABERFEA AREETEIRIBR
— BB AREE - WRAEHATEREK
R B R K T K ZE R R
BR %8 B EEUKIR 75 AT (] 7
oL E AR AEBEBHFH79%
SHEKBRK BH - NEBRRE
BHFE 7120002 TR T2 A8
BIHNRR - SELSBEEEMNEEEE
HOS B ERERBEYE -

Consumption Intensity in 2017
(Average consumption per person)

2017 EREBE
ERER 2017 HFEE (PR AEER)
Municipal water supply 1,794 M? 13.1 M? per person

B KK

Office Paper
NSRS

1,794 73 K

12,000 KG
12,0002 fr
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Direct consumption of petrol and conversion to
indirect energy consumption

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE -8k ERHBE (E)

AMBEEERERERKEE
RE TR BV K 7%

Energy Direct Consumption in 2017 (L) Indirect Consumption in 2017 (Kwh)
BEIR 2017 F E#EHFE () 2017 F B EH (T R &)
Vehicle Petrol 14,200 125,835.47
BRI 14,200 125,835.47

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

As the Group’s business attributes determine its low impact on the
environment, and many are not under its own control [e.g., the power
source of the office building and the energy structure of its power
system are different], therefore, the Group has not specifically
formulated policies on reducing the Group's significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. Currently, there are no specific

related research and development projects.

Within its control, the Group will try its best to minimise the damage
to the environment and natural resources, such as:

o The Group encourages and advocates paperless office, with
daily applications and approvals adopting online data

transmission to transmit information and reduce paper usage.

. When using office paper is unavoidable, the Group purchases
recycled (yellow) paper to reduce the cutting of native trees.

o The stainless steel cutlery and plastic cutlery are used in the
canteen, no wood cutlery and disposable cutlery is used to
reduce deforestation.

o Each employee will reuse the file folder or case.

. When purchasing furniture, furniture made with composite
materials will be purchased, i.e., office furniture that is glued
with waste wood chips and mixed materials.

During the reporting period, no incompliance of relevant
environmental-protection laws and regulations is reported to the
Group and no significant influences have been made to the Group.
Within its own control, the Group will continue to commit itself to
energy conservation and emission reduction, and to enhance the
employees’ environmental awareness.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RiR dEREREHE (A)

B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices
EMPLOYMENT

The Group strictly complies with relevant employment laws and
regulations of the People’s Republic of China to regulate the
recruitment and employment processes. The Group regards its
employees as the most valuable asset of the Group. The Group's
policy is to give equal opportunities to employ persons suitable for the
position concerned. Employees will be provided with competitive

remuneration packages.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 137 full-time
employees, all from mainland China, and did not have any part-time
employees.

Number of employees by
employee category

REEENESHNETH
5

7

17

Senior Management

BRELE

. 18-25 26-35
Middle Management 18-251% 26-35%%
W pemE
[ Frontline and other employees 46-35
AR R HoAtb R B 46-55B%

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Salaries are subject to the market trend, while market trend will be
studied by external remuneration reports and communication in
interviews, etc. In addition, reviews and adjustments will be made

through performance evaluation every year.

The Group allows the implementation of flexible working hours; in the
case of ensuring the completion of Party A’s tasks, the work, rest and
holidays shall be arranged by Party B itself. Working hours and
vacations are strictly implemented in accordance with Labour Law of
the PRC, standard working hours and national regulations of public

holidays, festivals and anniversaries.
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Number of employees
by employee’s age
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Number of employees
by employee’s gender
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The Group continues to entrust FESCO with the provision of human
resources services, there are no new policies or procedures during
the reporting year. There are no requirements of gender, religion,
race, physical characteristics and family status are not added in
recruitment of the Group. In the reported year, no discrimination
cases have occurred inside the Group.

Annual Turnover Rate

In the reporting year, the overall turnover rate of the employees of the
Group was 66.42%, with an increase of more than 10% compared with
last year, which was due to the industry characteristics. Dividing the
turnover rate into different age groups, the highest turnover rate in
the gender group can be found in employees under the age of 25,
which may be in line with the overall cultural background of the
society. The turnover rate of male employees is also higher than that

of female employees.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Turnover Rate by Employee Category
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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HEREREE (F)

Turnover Rate by Gender
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65.00%

63.00%

Male
H

Other Benefits of the Group

The Group offers housing fund, various insurance and other welfares
in addition to those regulated in the labour law. All employees
undergo full body check every year, and the Group purchases

commercial insurance for all employees.

In 2017, the Group optimised the claims process; for a single claim
less than RMB2,000, no original copy is needed, the customer can use
mobile APP for self-service claims. For a single claim over RMB2,000,
the employee can make an offline claim, simply by filling in the claim
form and prepare the claim document; after the insurance company
conducts the claim review, the employee can enjoy full
reimbursement of the medical expenses.

Employee Health and Safety

The Group strictly complies with the “Provisions on the Administration
of Fire Control Safety of State Organs, Organisations, Enterprises and
Institutions™ and other relevant laws and regulations to protect the
employees’ personal health and soundness. This issue is rated as a
substantive issue by the stakeholders mainly involving some routine
office operations in the operation process, no high-risk or high hazard
work is involved, and employees are not involved in production-
related occupational injuries or diseases. During the reporting period,
there are no reports of death for work and working day loss for injury
on duty in the Group.

The employees of the Group are mostly mental workers and have
long-time access to computers, therefore, the Group has related
employee benefits and will arrange employees to do cervical
massage, foot massage, and Chinese medicine diagnosis and
treatment from time to time.
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In order to offer the employees a good office environment, the
company strongly supports and encourages employees to quit
smoking, not allowing employees to smoke in public places to ensure
that all employees do not inhale secondhand smoke during work. The
interior decoration of the company also focuses on office greening.

The Group will conduct safety awareness training on office buildings
during the training for new employees. In order to popularise fire
safety knowledge, improve fire safety awareness, and prevent various
types of fire accidents, in 2017, Administration Department and the
professional fire instructors of the Beijing Fire Prevention Center
combine actual cases to conduct on-site fire safety training and
dissemination for the employees, and distribute “Fire Safety Know-
how Handbook”. The content includes theoretical knowledge and
precautions of fire control, the use of fire fighting equipment, various
types of fire treatment methods, and so on.

Development and Training

The Group keeps providing employees with training opportunities in
various aspects, such as improving professional skills, management
skills, and customer communication skills. During the reporting
period, all employees of the Group receive different types of training.
All 137 employees have been trained during the reporting period, with
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a total of 685 hours of training.

685/NBF ©

Number of employees trained BEXEIEIAH 137
Total training hours 4855 51 5 88 685
By employee category BIESHEF
Senior Management SREEE
Number of senior management trained EXHFINERNERE A
Average training hours completed by each B S MEIRE T 7RISR E 5
senior management member
Middle Management PREEE
Number of middle management trained BEZHFINFREREAE 13
Average training hours completed by each B REIRE T 78S R 5
middle management member
Frontline and other employees AZREMES
Number of frontline and other employees trained 1 FIM AR R E b8 B A 19
Average training hours completed by frontline and & 3 4% & H & 8 F 15 52 5k 55 3l i S 5
other employees
By employee’s gender BIES MR
Male BH
Number of male employees trained EZHFINSERE AR 77
Average training hours completed by each BB E T A ENIIRE 5
male employee
Female z
Number of female employees trained BEXHFINZERE AR 60
Average training hours completed by each Bzt 8 T 5 IR E 5

female employee
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Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was employed in the Group’'s
operations in the reporting period. In the process of recruiting
employees, background checks will be conducted on employees to
ensure that all procedures comply with relevant laws, such as the
“Regulations on Paid Annual Leave of Employees”, “Trade Union Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, "Provisions on Prohibition of Child
Labour”, and "Provisions on Special Protection for Minor Workers”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Minors”.

Supply Chain Management

Although this issue is rated as a substantive issue by the
stakeholders, however, as a high-tech enterprise, the Group does not
involve in material production nor consume large amount of raw
materials, therefore, there is no record of regional category and

specific number of suppliers.

The Group's daily procurement mainly includes office supplies. While
selecting important suppliers, Purchasing Department, user
department, Internal Control Department and General Manager will
form an assessment team to evaluate suppliers in terms of
reputation, finance and quality control, etc. The assessment team has
to submit assessment report and sign to confirm it after assessment.
Suppliers assessed to be disqualified cannot be registered in the
supplier list.

Product Responsibility

There is no product safety problem related to entity products in the
Group as it only provides virtual products and services. There is no
consideration that products have to be recycled due to quality or
safety reasons. Misleading problems of advertisements do not exist

as customers of the Group are organisations.

A customer service center is established to deal with service
complaints. No customer complaints exist in the reporting period.

Intellectual Property

The Group attaches great importance to intellectual property
consistently. The Group has signed the agreement of not using pirated
software of which all softwares are genuine. A policy of the Group
stipulates that pirated software is forbidden to be downloaded or used
in the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE -8k ERHBE (E)

In order to protect the intellectual property and privacy of the Group
and its customers, the employees of the Group are required to abide
by the confidentiality agreement during and after their term of office.
The company also has detailed non-competition clauses to protect its

own intellectual property rights.

In 2017, in order to avoid intellectual property infringement disputes,
the Group decides that the companies of the Group would no longer
use Founder's “base font” and “selected font” on commercial
advertising media, such as advertisements, trademarks, web page
designs, and user manuals. For previous designs, the Group requests
that each department should check Founder’s “base font” and “selected
font” lists, carefully check whether such problems are involved, and
formulate amendments and remedial plans based on the actual
situation. At the same time, the Group issues an announcement
requiring all companies to enhance awareness of intellectual property
protection in the production of commercial advertising media, such as
advertisements, trademarks, web designs, user manuals, etc. For the
use of fonts or images for commercial purposes, the sources and
licenses must be carefully investigated, and as far as possible, fonts
or images with clear sources and no restrictions on commercial use
should be used. If it is necessary to use special fonts or images that
may involve infringement issues, it must be discussed and evaluated
with Legal Department, and approved by the responsible person

before it can be used.

Consumer Privacy

Network security and consumer privacy are the technical
maintenance points that the Group always attaches importance to. In
this year, the Group continues adopting such encryption methods as
3des, rsa and mdb to store customer data and protect data by means
of some ways like hardware firewall, software firewall and data

isolation. There is no update related encryption method for 2017.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations and rejects any
illegal acts, such as corruption and bribery. Corruption and other
related situations are not found during the reporting year, and the
Group will consider adding formal anti-corruption regulations in the

future.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group did not invest in communities because it has been founded
for a short period of time. The Group will actively play its role and
make contributions to communities in the financial year of 2018.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % B S

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{HH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA BINARY SALE TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liabilities)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Binary Sale
Technology Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 164, which comprise the consolidated
December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 31

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"] issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”], and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2017. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYZHBERE (B)

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal
or as an agent in respect of online transaction services

Refer to note 5(d) to the consolidated financial statements

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised online
transaction services income of RMB11,441,000, all of which is presented on
a net basis since the Group considered that it is acting as agent rather than
as principal.

The Group is acting as a principal only when it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the
rendering of service. The features of an entity when it is acting as a principal
included (i) being primarily responsibility to provide goods or services; [ii]
exposure to inventory risk; (iii) establishing price; and (iv) exposure to credit
risk. The directors assess whether the Group is acting as a principal or as
an agent by reviewing all the relevant facts and circumstances and the

substance of the online transaction services provided.

We identified the accounting for revenue from provision of online transaction
service as a key audit matter as it requires management to exercise
significant judgement on determining the position of the Group in providing
the online transaction services, and was assessed by us to be a significant

risk of material misstatement.
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent in the provision of online

transaction services included:

— Evaluating whether the Group’s presentation of revenue on a gross
basis (as a principal] versus a net basis (as an agent] was in

conformity with the applicable revenue recognition framework;

— Reviewing the key factors in the underlying business model, including
the Group’s inventory level, and sales and purchase contracts (on a
sampling basis) to determine whether the Group has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the provision of online

transaction services;

— Performing IT systems audit to confirm our understanding about the
Group’'s business model and substance of the provision of online
transaction services.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ZHE R E (&)

Impairment assessment of unlisted available-for-sale
financial assets

Refer to note 5(f] to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had unlisted available-for-sale financial assets of approximately
RMB51,839,000 as at 31 December 2017.

Management concluded that other than the impairment disclosed in note
18, there is no impairment on the unlisted available-for-sale financial
assets based on the circumstances of the investees, including any
significant changes with an adverse effect that has taken place in
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
investees operate.

We identified the impairment assessment of unlisted available-for-sale
financial assets as a key audit matter as it requires management to exercise
significant judgement on determining any impairment indicator in relation
to the Group’'s investments existed at the end of the reporting period, and
was assessed by us to be a significant risk of material misstatement.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment

included:
— Understanding on the investees’ operations and latest development;
—  Assessing the financial performance of the investees;

— Comparing the carrying amount with the transaction value of the
investees’ equity interest during the year;

— Challenging the reasonableness of management’'s key assumptions
adopted in the impairment assessment based on our knowledge of

the business and industry.

Impairment assessment of prepayments, advances to
independent third parties and other receivables

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

The carrying amounts of the Group’s gross prepayments, advances to
independent third parties and other receivables as at 31 December 2017
were approximately RMB57,832,000, RMB34,101,000 and RMB29,797,000

respectively.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BYZHBERE (B)

Management reviews prepayments, advances to independent third parties
and others receivables for objective evidence of impairment on a periodic
basis. In determining this, management makes significant judgement on the
credit worthiness of the debtors, including whether there have been
significant adverse changes in the debtors’ financial condition affecting the
debtors’ ability to settle the debts. Where there is objective evidence of
impairment, management estimates the amount of impairment loss that
should be made against the receivables, taking into consideration the

estimation of future cash flows of these receivables.

We have identified the impairment assessment of prepayments, advances to
independent third parties and others receivables as a key audit matter
because of significance of these amounts to the consolidated financial
statements and because applying the Group’s accounting policies in this
area involves a significant degree of judgement by management in
identification of impairment indicators and the determination of the amount

of impairment loss.
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
prepayments, advances to independent third parties and others receivables
included:

—  Analysing and testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
profiles of prepayments, advances to independent third parties and
others receivables by checking to the underlying invoices and other
source documents, to ensure that it was appropriate for management

to use them for impairment assessment;

— Conducting a detailed discussion with management on significant
prepayments, advances to independent third parties and others

receivables as to whether these receivables were impaired; and

— Reviewing the adequacy and appropriateness of the provision for
impairment made by management with reference to the ageing
profiles, settlement records, subsequent settlements and other facts
and circumstances currently available for the significant receivables.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ZHE R E (&)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

orerror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process. The audit committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

72 China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017

EFHEAMBBRNELLTIRELME
B BET TR FEMERBEREMPA
BEEE LW -

ZEHREEUBRRNES TENE
BEEMER  FltBES  ZERAME
Eﬁie_ﬂ

BN BEATEEAEBREUTEES
REERRA TR

o

S

ENBZFCHTNIE NRESR/EM
EMFEEAHERRL EEFERSTZE
BE-EEHE BFREMEMMRE -

RERESH B REARE
%

EZRRAARBEEEGAMAGRMZER
M mELENRFB(RIEOD N EEEK
BHREEMPENGAMBHRER  LHER
BRERAVBRROERTFEHBNIKEE
o $5 R T B BUH) B K A RR BR b P 7R B ) R 4R
HEE-

EREGAVBHRERT EFAATHEH &
SEBBERENRN TEERABRATHRE
BEELEAMNER URERFALE
REFMER RIEEFEHR EEEBR
HIFLRE AP BEEMCERNBRTR-

EXTEAEEE ESENMBHRHRER &
REZEEEREBHEERITRERSE



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B ZHE R E (&)

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Alfred Lee
Practising Certificate Number P04960

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ReZHEBaER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k=g ARBT T ARETT
Revenue N 7 26,413 30,965
Cost of revenue W A B AR (15,090) (8,525)
Gross profit EM 11,323 22,440
Other income and gains N PN g 7 38,053 179,983
Change in fair value of financial assets at BRAFEFABENDE
fair value through profit or loss BEATEE = 1.393
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (5,084) (4,530
Administrative expenses THRX (43,845) (22,932)
Share of loss of an associate JEAE — A& ARl 2 18 19 (267) —
Gain from a bargain purchase ER gl g 39(b) — 372
Finance costs BhE B AR 8 (794) —
(Loss)/profit before income tax credit/(expense) & A3 H K %, (B ) Al
(B 18), 9 (614) 176,726
Income tax credit/(expense) EriEmiEe,/ (F%) 12 1,455 (22,099)
Profit for the year FRER 841 154,627
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mE K=
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEgSeE5HFo-BE
to profit or loss: BmmIER
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AftEESREEDN
financial assets NEEE 23,727 34,717
Reclassification of investment revaluation HETHEE S EER
reserve upon disposal of available-for-sale BEMORKREEHHE
financial assets 18(c) (18,777) —
Other comprehensive income for the year FAEM D E K 4,950 34,717
Total comprehensive income for the year FREZEWRSZHE 5,791 189,344
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: NTEEEGFERER
(E1])
Owners of the Company PN/NSIEZ RSN 7,041 156,054
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR M R (6,200) (1,427)
841 154,627
Total comprehensive income ATEEEGMFRAZE KSR
for the year attributable to: PR
Owners of the Company KANTIER A 11,991 190,771
Non-controlling interests R (6,200) (1,427)
5,791 189,344
Earnings per share (RMB cents]) BRAEFMARES)
— Basic — R 14 1.47 32.51
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5 B35 R R &R

As at 31 December 2017 #2017412H31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBT R AREFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment N N 15 2,406 1,505
Intangible assets BEEE 16 776 3,002
Prepayments for acquisition of property, WEME - BER
plant and equipment H AN RRIE 22 1,679 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHESREE 18 136,833 174,186
Interest in an associate REtE AR ER 19 2,733 —
Goodwill EES 20 509 —
Long term prepayments R ETEI RIB 22 3,500 2,600
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 148,436 181,293
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables Z 5 RWGRIE 21 773 8,685
Prepayments, deposits and AR e REM
other receivables FE U FR I8 22 116,634 72,481
Inventories FE 23 5,087 19,932
Amount due from a related company JE UL B A R R IE 24 — 484
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABRRD
profit or loss THREE 25 — 2,379
Pledged bank deposits EIFRITER 26 65,015 —
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEED 27 83,319 164,808
Total current assets mBEEMR 270,828 268,769
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables 2 5 ENFIE 28 7,997 89,708
Other payables and accruals HEMNFIEREFER 29 17,613 10,714
Bank borrowings RITHER 30 61,000 -
Current tax liabilities ENEARi B B E 521 19,437
Total current liabilities mEBERAR 87,131 119,859
Net current assets RBEEFE 183,697 148,910
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBARG 332,133 330,203
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e AR R R (&)

As at 31 December 2017 72017412 H31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P £ ARBT T AR®TT

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BREREEE 31 7,099 8,498
Total non-current liabilities FnEaEEsE 7,099 8,498
NET ASSETS EERE 325,034 321,705
Equity attributable to owners of AAREERA
the Company iR
Issued capital BT 32 2,941 2,941
Reserves & 85 320,720 307,479
323,661 310,420
Non-controlling interests FIERER 1,373 11,285
TOTAL EQUITY HmRER 325,034 321,705
On behalf of the Board
REESE
Wei Zhonghua Sun Jiangtao
M BRiIE
Director Director
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREZSEX

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KARERAEGER
Investment Non-
Issued Share Capital  Statutory revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total equity
REEBf
ERTRE  RODEE BARE ARG #E  REEN ax FERER ey gy
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARSTT AR%TT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
(note 33(a)]  (note 33(b))  (note 33(c))  (note 33(d))  [note 33(e))
(FirsE3s(e)) (Pa33(o)) (RHaE33(c) (Fiakasld)) (it &E33le))
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1A1H 2,941 47,899 1371 15,113 - 52,314 119,638 13,885 133,523
Profit/[loss] for the year EREd/(58) - - - - — 156,05 156,05 (1427) 154,627
Change in fair value of AELES R
available-for-sale EENLTE
financial assets g - - - - 34,717 - 34,717 - 34,717
Total comprehensive ERPHNEAR
income for the year - - - - 34,717 156,054 190,771 (1427) 189,344
Acquisition of WEEmERR
non-controlling FERER
interests of a subsidiary - - - - - 11 11 (311) (300)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNE
(note 40(b) A (M EE40(b)) - - - - - - - (862) (862)
Appropriation to statutory ~ BEAETE FfE
reserve - - - 1997 - (1.997) - - -
At31December 2016and  FA2016% 12 A31H
1 January 2017 R2017E1818 2,941 47899 1371 17,110 3617 206,382 310,420 11,285 321,705
Profit/[loss) for the year EnaFl/ (B8) - = = = = 7,041 7,041 (6,200) 841
Change in fair value of AfLESREE
available-for-sale ATEEZY
financial assets - - - - 23,727 - 23,727 - 23,727
Reclassification of investment HE A HE 45
revaluation reserve upon  BEBEH N
disposal of available-for- RAEhEHE
sale financial assets (BEE18(c))
(note 18(c)) = = = = (18,777) - (18,777) - (18,777)
Total comprehensive FREENGEE
income for the year - - - - 4,950 7,041 11,991 (6,200) 5,791
Capital injections from FERERTE
non-controlling interests ~ (Fit5E17)
(note 17) - - - - - - - 490 490
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —EH B A A
(note 39(al) (Bt 3E390a)) - = - - - - - (320) (320)
Acquisition of non-controlling Yt B fff & 22 7]
interests of subsidiaries FERES
[note 17) (BtzE17) - - - - - 1,250 1,250 (3882)  [2632)
Appropriation to statutory ~ BAETEHE
reserve - - - 182 - (182) - - -
At 31 December 2017 R2017FE12A318 2,941 47,899 1,371 17,292 39,667 214,691 323,661 1,373 325,034
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBF T
(Loss)/profit before income tax credit/(expense) MRATERIIK & (BX) AT (B18), & F (614) 176,726
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FEWBA (485) (902)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BELREETE 434 551
Amortisation of intangible assets T & B 360 258
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At E e EERE
financial assets EE = 100
Impairment loss on prepayments B FOREEE = 132
Impairment loss on inventories FEREEE 278 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 W IR R E R R 1,397 -
Share of loss of an associate EE—FABE R E 2 B8 267 —
Change in fair value of financial assets at BAFEFABEN SR
fair value through profit or loss BEEANTFEE — (1,393]
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEITHRIESREED
financial assets W 25 (35,687) (178,015)
Written back of trade payables B 5 EMN 1Az B (1,315) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B A BB W s (767) (151)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  HEIKXREBEZWE (66) —
Loss on disposal of financial assets at BRATEFAEZNEREE
fair value through profit or loss HE ER 420 —
Deemed gain on disposal of available-for- BIEHERIHEHE
sale financial assets TREENNKE — (93)
Gain from a bargain purchase EEEERE —_ (372)
Interest expenses M ERX 794 -
Operating loss before working capital changes LEESEBALEERE (34,984) (3,159)
Decrease/(increase] in trade receivables B 5 EWGRIER L (35 ) 6,515 (5,464)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR e R E A B RIE
other receivables 3 1N (132) (1,269)
Decrease in inventories FERL 14,567 34,672
Decrease in amount due from a related company & ST 8 38 N B 3k T8 e 484 2,458
(Decreasel/increase in trade payables B 5 EMNFIECRD) 10 (80,396) 43,948
Increase/(decrease) in other payables EMEMNRKIERETER
and accruals #n, CR 2) 6,527 (3,588)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EE (TR, EEE (87,419) 67,598
Income taxes paid EER (18,393) (2,921)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEK (A FMEER:
operating activities FE (105,812) 64,677
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFTT
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHREBEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WEKIH&E (1,440) (185)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVEE — (194)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHEESREE (37,070) (19,411)
Prepayments of long term investments AN REKRE (3,500) (2,600)
Prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and WHEYE  HE RRENENIE
equipment (1,679) -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAHRLESREEMS
financial assets Ig 117,660 78,567
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZRATEFABENEREE
fair value through profit or loss Fr 5 518 1,959 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HEMRBRAGNREEN
net of cash disposed RE) ZFAERIA 1,999 1,604
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE MEMEEZEIE
equipment 145 —
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary in prior year & F WM B QR 2R (290) -
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of WHENRBARMSRSE
a subsidiary A 35 530
Payment for interest in an associate e N EIRER N (3,000) —
Repayment from/(advance to) an investment classified 28 A ] L & £ B & &=
as available-for-sale financial asset and its fellow FERRMNBARZEE
subsidiaries B (B 9,101 (4,281)
Advances to independent third parties MBILE=HBK (34,101) —
Deposits paid for business development projects ENEXBEREELRS (18,950) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEEERRITER (65,015) -
Interest received B B 485 902
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities RETH (FTA),/ FERESFE (33,661) 54,932
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHAERERE
Proceeds from borrowings RIS E S 61,000 -
Interest paid BEARFE (794) —
Capital contribution from non-controlling REME DB EERER
equity holders of a subsidiary HAEENIE 410 -
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling WM B AR FEERE = 2 3K
interests of a subsidiary (2,632) (300)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities METEHAE (A RESFE 57,984 (300)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REeRESZEY (D)
and cash equivalents b b3 (81,489) 119,309
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERES
at the beginning of year ZEYy 164,808 45,499
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRES
at the end of year ZEBY 83,319 164,808
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBEEUHEH
and cash equivalents kil
Cash and bank balances (note 27) e RIRTT4E e (M sE27) 83,319 164,808
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B I HRAR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the "Company’] was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 11 May 2011. Its issued shares are listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are located at P.0. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and
3rd Floor, No.1 Building TaiYueYuan, Haidian District, Beijing, the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"] respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”] are principally
engaged in providing online transaction services by facilitating
transactions between online game operators and online game users,
providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers, and providing
micro financing facilitating services to individual borrowers and
lenders in the PRC.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”] to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the
Company became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are as set out in "History and Development” of the
prospectus issued by the Company dated 27 November 2013.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION

(a) Basis of presentation

As a result of the Reorganisation mentioned in note 1, the
Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from the
Reorganisation since management and equity holders of the
entities comprising the Group which took part in the
Reorganisation remained the same before and after the
Reorganisation. Consequently, immediately after the
Reorganisation, there was a continuation of risks and benefits
to the ultimate controlling parties that existed prior to the

Reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs") and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for the certain
available-for-sale listed securities and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
Renminbi ['/RMB”], which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

82

(a)

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the additional
disclosure presented in the note to the consolidated statement

of cash flows, note 41.

Except as discussed above, the adoption of these amendments

has no material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued) 3. RABERUBREER
(&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) 2 MM 1E 1 R &£ MK T E
but are not yet effective BRI EBMBRE
% A
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the WAt AEEYEREREH
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet A EIETTE ST BRE D
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The BHEMG BERRESITAEEAEH
Group's current intention is to apply these changes on the date REFEWN AEEBAHMTENRZS
they become effective. EHER 2 BRERAZSES -
Annual improvements Amendment to HKAS28, 20145 2201658 HEGTAER
HKFRSs Investments in Associates HOEERN KR  FE285E
2014-2016 and Joint Ventures' HEHRAFELE 5] REEE
NAIREE
HERE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' EAMGERELEL 2T A
L
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB BHELEL BREPAHOWA
Customers' F155%
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEEMBHREEN BERPEHKA
Customers' F155 IS ET
HKFRS 16 Leases’ BEVHHMEEL HE?
F165%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions E5 (HRE % INEE X B % B
and Advance Consideration’ WMEREZLZE HHRE

o) -BREER
i

HKI(IFRIC]-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EF& (BB 7% FEREIE
Treatments® WmEZREBZEZSR THEE M

g)-BREE23
5%

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ! R2018F 1 A1B K AE R B FE
AR A2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 R2019F 1 A1B R AEFHBHFE
AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued)

84

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” clarifying
that a venture capital organisation’s permissible election to
measure its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made

separately for each associate or joint venture.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test] and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity's
business model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect their

risk management activities in financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued) 3. HAEANKREED &

&

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
financial assets as at 31 December 2017 and anticipated that
the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may result in early
recognition of credit losses based on the expected loss model
in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The Group’s investments in unlisted equity
instruments may be measured at FVTOCI, which may cause

change on the consolidated financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
HKAS 11
interpretations.

“Revenue”, “Construction Contracts” and related

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

e Stepb: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the

qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued)

86

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipated that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures.
However, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective

reporting periods.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-
of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued) 3. FAEAMKEREED @

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMENKRERNHE

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two

types of leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately RMB4,229,000
as disclosed in note 36(a). A preliminary assessment indicated
that these arrangement will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-to-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement,

presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on determining the date of
the transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for
transactions that involve advance consideration paid or received
in a foreign currency and the recognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability. The interpretations specifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the date on which
the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKI(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12
“Income Taxes”, by providing guidance over how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes. Under the
interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to consider
each uncertain tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full knowledge
of all related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If
the entity determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in
the determination of tax is reflected using either the "most
likely amount” or the “expected value” approach, whichever

better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Except as discussed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and the entities (including
structured entities) now comprising the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the

year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs

are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

90

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and [ii] the previous carrying
amount of the assets [including goodwilll, and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be

required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’'s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results

in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: (1] power over the
investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (3) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
their
carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-

they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,

acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except that
losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those

losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’'s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset

transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the
carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment

in the same way as other non-financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

92

(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The depreciation
rates, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The depreciation rates are as follows:

Office equipment Syears
Computer equipment 5years
Motor vehicles 5years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated

recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Lease

(f)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentive received
from the lessor are charged to the profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Intangible assets

(i)  Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful live as
follows:

Computer software 5-10years

(ii) Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)
Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

. sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

9

(f)

(g)

Intangible assets (continued)

(i) Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)(Continued]
Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
(iii) Impairment
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of
impairment losses of non-financial assets in note 4(g)).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and long term prepayments to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount [i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use] of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The value-in-use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the assets and the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value by using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit (see
note 4(q)), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

(h) Fina
(i)

d 31 December 2017 &£ E£2017412 8318 ILFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ncial instruments

Financial assets

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial assets when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and all other
financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular way
purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4 FESTTHE @

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) €@ T & @)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued) i) =®MEE @
Loans and receivables B3R fE M sE

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to clients (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. At each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in
other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments,

which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

(h) Fina
(ii)

d 31 December 2017 &£ E£2017412 8318 ILFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ncial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial
asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s

financial difficulty; and

. it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have had the impairment not been

recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

98

(Continued)

(h) Fina
(ii)

China Bina

ncial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised

in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss is not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

(h) Fina
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

d 31 December 2017 &£ E£2017412 8318 ILFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ncial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial liabilities when it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument
and classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities were

incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost,
including trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank borrowings, and amounts due to a related company
and subsidiaries, are initially recognised at fair value, net
of directly attributable transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset

or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

100

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(vi) Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and [(ii] the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18

“Revenue”.

(vii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled

or expired.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017

4 FESTTHE @

(h) €@ T B @)

(i)

vi) MBERSY
MBERAGODREETA
AFAEAXNEESE KU
MEFSEABABRETREA
%%mﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁim
& &1 5 3R 2 B 05 5 5k
%%E%°$$%l%ﬁ%
VHEEREQATEBEBRE
@R BERA QNS
BAVERBELEYBERS
WEEREENRZERAR T
R HERE AKHE
BATEERGEEMH
ER:MRERBEEER
EITHR[BE  IARBERK
REEIBEZ2E : L
SHATER(WNEE) RIE
HREEEAF ISR W
R R HH -

[VII] A JJ:ﬁEm,\
AEBERCRMEEFAN
*Xfﬂimug ?’]@E?ﬂ
WA EMEECEE
%%%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
MR & K- RIZLER
BIERATHEE -

HWRERAONEETRTE
Rk EHEHI K AlE
RIFERTRAEE-

rE
GFEVFIEKRAER  HEBIEKAR
NI B R ENRIEEER - R

BIREMAERBKA - BB KA N
FEESE B A A KA AT E
R E MR o B PASE A SE A
AE-AERFEMEAEN -RER
BIEPHMGHFHESEREZERTK
MEETRRAREEMIHEERX



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j)

(k)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from online transaction services represents service
fees received from mobile subscribers and online game users,
net of monies shared with the online game operators pursuant
to the terms of the cooperation agreements with online game
operators or the costs of mobile top-up credits sourced from
PRC telecommunication companies and their distributors.
Revenue is recognised when online transactions have been

completed.

Revenue from micro financing facilitating services represents
service fees received from individual borrowers and lenders for
facilitating online loan transaction between them and provision
of related services. Revenue is recognised when the services

are provided.

Revenue from provision of financing guarantee services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the guarantee period.

Revenue from provision of information technology services is

recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from advertising services is recognised in the period in
which the advertisement is displayed or promotion is performed
on a straight-line basis, and when collection of the receivable is
probable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred

tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting

period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

102

(k)

(U

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised to other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(il Pension schemes
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
schemes. The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules

of the central pension schemes.

(i) Other benefits
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for

benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

104

(o)

(p)

(q)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit
or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount [see note 4(g)),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be

impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Goodwill (continued)

(r)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable] or its value in use |if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(il has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

106

(Continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member):

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vii] A person identified in (al(i] has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(i) children of that person’'s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered

to be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued

108

(a)

(b)

Impairment allowances for trade and bills
receivables and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and
bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables by assessing the recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgments. Allowances are applied to trade
and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances at
the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives for the intangible assets and the property, plant and
equipment of the Group. The estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of
similar nature and functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of technical innovations which would
affect the related amortisation and depreciation charges
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of income and deferred tax
provisions

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the amount of
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the income and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination was made.

Revenue recognition in respect of online
transaction services

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the
online transaction services and suppliers of online transaction
services and determines that the Group is providing online
transaction services in the majority of transactions by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and
online game users, and providing online transaction services to
mobile subscribers and online game users, and accordingly

reports revenue derived from such services on a net basis.

In determining whether the revenue from online transaction
services shall be recorded on net basis or gross basis, the
Group has made reference to indicators and requirements
stated in HKAS 18 “Revenue”. Determining whether the Group
is acting as a principal or an agent requires judgment and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances, and the
Group considers itself has an agency relationship with online
game operators under HKAS 18 by assessing the following
features that are arising from its operations:

o It is the primary responsibility of the PRC
telecommunication companies and the online game
operators, and not the Group, for processing the mobile
top-up associated with the mobile top-up credits provided
to the mobile subscribers and the delivery of online game

products to the online game users, respectively.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

110

(d) Revenue recognition in respect of online
transaction services (Continued)

The Group has minimal inventory risk for the transactions
with mobile top-up credits sourced from the online game
users as those mobile top-up credits are used to top up
the mobile subscriber’s requests instantaneously.
Although the Group sources some mobile top-up credits
from the PRC telecommunication companies and their
distributors as buffer stocks in case there is a shortage of
mobile top-up credits from online game users, these
stocks are used solely to facilitate the transactions.

The service fees are usually predetermined pursuant to
the terms of the cooperation agreements with online
game operators.

The credit risk of the Group is minimal as majority of the
mobile subscribers and online game users either pay in
advance or at time of requesting online transaction
services, except for a minor portion of customers who are
granted with credit period.

After assessing the above features, the Group considers itself

has an agency relationship with online game operators.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017

5. FESHHUERMAEFT @

d REXZRBWARER

(#)

HRZEFREETEDSE
TRFHAP B A R
FEE MAEBBKE LIS
ERAEFERNFHEEETE
SHENZSMAENTFER
GARK - BEARAEEEFE
BEABREDHEERE
DFHFEERELBIEAB
FHEEBRRENFHREE
TESEITEENEGT
E ZEGTEERARRER

o

So

AR 7% 8 i AR % R
BEENAEHRIGRRESL
BT -

HRARD FHAP k@ L
HEAPREEN RN EKX
WMLELZBENK AEEH
FEERRAIK EIBEP
ERTEED-

RFEA LB ARERRE A
WEHRELHERERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. I E <3t ¥ & % &5t @)
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(o) HERREBBMXBIR

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology

Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL")

Beijing TJYL has been wholly owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao ("Mr.
Sun”) and Mr. Wei Zhonghua ("Mr. Wei “), the directors and
shareholders, and Mr. Wei Chunming, the then director, since
its establishment. Under the prevailing laws and regulations in
the PRC, companies with foreign ownership are prohibited from
engaging in the internet information services business in the
PRC. In order to enable the Company to obtain control over
Beijing TJYL and its directly or indirectly owned subsidiaries,
Beijing Shenzhoufu Technology Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Shenzhoufu”),
Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Youxiping”],
Wanlefu Technology Limited ("Wanlefu Technology”),
Shijiazhuang Aigigi Information Technology Co. Ltd. ("Aigigi
Information”) (acquired on 31 December 2016 and disposed of
on 31 December 2017, see notes 39(b) and 40(a) for details),
Xinjiang Shenzhou Binary Investment Management Limited
("Xinjiang Shenzhou”), Xinjiang Nine Domain Digital Venture
Capital Limited (“Xinjiang Nine Domain”], Beijing Kuaihuika
Technology Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Kuaihuika“){acquired on 1
January 2017, see note 39(a) for details], Hainan Shenzhou
Binary Microfinance Limited ("Hainan Shenzhou”) and Shenzhen
Qianhai Huisantong Internet Financial Service Limited ("Shenzhen
Huisantong”), certain structured contracts (the “Structured
Contracts”) were effectuated among Beijing TJYL, Mr. Sun
Jiangtao, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, Mr. Wei Chunming and Shenzhoufu
(Beijing) Software Technology Co., Ltd. ("Shenzhoufu Software”)
(a 100% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company] on 22 June
2011, pursuant to which Shenzhoufu Software undertakes to
provide Beijing TJYL with certain information consulting and
technical supporting services in return for fees which represent
a substantial amount of the profit generated by Beijing TJYL
from its operation of online transaction services in the PRC.
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5.

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL") (continued)

To determine whether control exists over Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries, the Group has considered the following factors in
accordance with HKFRS 10 paragraph 7:

. The power over an investee to direct the relevant activities
that significantly affect the investee’s return was granted
to Shenzhoufu Software through the exclusive consulting
and services agreement, under which Shenzhoufu
Software is able to appoint directors, general manager
and senior management personnel of Beijing TJYL, and
thus is able to direct all major business decisions of
Beijing TJYL. Further, Shenzhoufu Software is able to
cast the majority of votes at shareholder meetings. This
right was transferred to Shenzhoufu Software as stated in
the shareholder voting right entrustment agreement.

J Pursuant to the exclusive consulting and services
agreement, substantially all profits of Beijing TJYL were
transferred through consulting and technical supporting
services fees payable by Beijing TJYL to Shenzhoufu
Software, which expose the Group to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and the
shareholder voting right entrustment agreement gives
Shenzhoufu Software the rights of the original
shareholders including the rights to any dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology

(f)

Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL") (continued)

o The Group has the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of its returns as it exercises
its power over Beijing TJYL on its own behalf and for its
own benefit. The Group has complete decision making
authority over Beijing TJYL and the Group’s decisions will
significantly affect the amount of its returns [i.e. the
amount of the profits of Beijing TJYL which it can obtain
through the consulting and technical supporting services
fees charged to Beijing TJYL).

As a result of the effects of the Structured Contracts, Beijing
TJYL, Beijing Shenzhoufu, Beijing Youxiping, Wanlefu
Technology, Aigiqi Information (before disposal), Xinjiang
Shenzhou, Xinjiang Nine Domain, Beijing Kuaihuika (after
acquisition], Hainan Shenzhou and Shenzhen Huisantong are
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group for accounting

purposes.

Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale
investments

The directors review unlisted available-for-sale investments at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether they are
impaired. The Group records impairment charges on unlisted
available-for-sale equity investments when there has objective
evidence that an impairment indicator exists. The determination
of whether the impairment indicator exists requires judgment.
In making this judgment, management of the Group takes into
account factors such as significant changes with an adverse
effect that has taken place in technological, market, economic
or legal environment in which the investees operate, and that
indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity

instrument may not be recovered.

5. FESHHUEHRMAEFT @

o) HERREBBMXBIR

(f)

WM FHEERMERQF

AEI(TEEREBE KN
2 5 ()

e AEBEAEREHIRET
MENAZEERKRE KIA
RGBT EE I RAH
BHAOBEINEHRSE - K
SEAEERARBHROE
BOREEE  MAKE R
EREAFEINELOHN S
#(BNE BB R4 R H B B
U B R AR R 0l S 4R R S B
A B Y db KM RS B O A
T e

HREBEANNTE  ERXH
BHE - dE A M AT B RBEUE -
MENMHME EAFERME
RT)  FSEAR N - HTIE AL - B RIR
BRUER)  BEBMNERINE
ZEAREAEAMERBER/AE
EeK BT -

?EFJ:FEEH#\':H%?QEE’\J%

EENSMEHREMIFLTA
HEERENFHEHURERSD
BE - WEEBEBRRTHFER
B AEBIE LT HEREER
BERBHRERX REEEERFHE
BB R 5% B 8 Hh B o FEHETT A
B ~EEEBREZERERER
BEMER - 5 BBEHOX
ARELARNASIANZENE
EHFHF BRIBRATARLRE
BRI BE T & U m) o

—z—treaey 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

5.

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(g) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate the present value

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the

Company’s executive directors. (During the year, the Group
established, among others, new business segment, resulting in a
change in composition of reportable operating segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers different
services and requires different business strategies. The Group's
service lines identified as reportable operating segments are as

follow:

(i) Online transaction services (including provision of information

technology services and advertising services);

(il Micro financing facilitating services [new segment during the

year (including provision of financing guarantee service)).

All of the revenue from external customers and non-current assets of
located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

the Group are derived from activities or

Corresponding items of segment information for the year ended 31
December 2016, during which, the Company’s executive directors
considered the Group had one reporting segment, have been restated

for consistent presentation with current year’'s segment information.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING continued) 6. D EPERE )
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results, assets

N
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=
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N

and liabilities and other information by reportable and operating

Online Micro financing

transaction facilitating
services services Unallocated Total
/ERS NERE
B AR ROE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTRT AR%¥TR ARBTR
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A31HLEF
I
Segment revenue — external o B m—INED 12,035 14,378 - 26,413
Segment results DEEE (17,085) (6,348) - (23,433)
Unallocated income AABBA 35,745
Unallocated expenses AAEAX (11,471)
Profit for the year F R A 841
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 140,854 10,794 — 151,648
Unallocated assets APOREE
— Available-for-sale financial —AHHECREE
assets 119,689
— Pledged bank deposits —HEARITER 65,015
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReREEEEY 56,554
— Others —H 26,358
Total assets BEE 419,264
Liabilities &8
Segment liabilities DHEE 75,407 7,168 - 82,575
Unallocated liabilities AAEEE 11,655
Total liabilities wafk 94,230
Other information Hfth & 8
Interest income B YA 397 46 42 485
Interest expense TSR (794) - = (794)
Gain on disposal of available-for-  HEMHHESREE
sale financial assets W= 865 — 34,822 35,687
Loss on disposal of financial assets & A {E=t ABzH & &
at fair value through profitorloss B EHEBE (420) - - (420)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE - B R E
Lhga 767 - - 767
Share of loss of an associate I —REBE DA 2 B8 (267) = = (267)
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREE
plant and equipment e (404) (30) = (434)
Amortisation of intangible assets i & & # §4 (120) (33) (207) (360)
Impairment loss on B 5 EWHRIEREEE
trade receivables - (1,397) - (1,397)
Impairment loss on inventories ﬁ%’f?}ﬁﬁ}éﬂé (278) - - (278)
Written back of trade payables Z S ENFIEER 1,315 - - 1,315
Income tax credit/(expense] SR E /B %) 1,175 (464) 744 1,455
Additions to non-current assets FREBEERE 1,196 244 - 1,440
Equity accounted for investmentin {5 — B & R Bl E M
an associate S 2,733 — - 2,733
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEHE @
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results, assets AT EYAREEIZA 2mMLE D IHHU
and liabilities and other information by reportable and operating mhEE BEERAGBUREMERNZ
segments (continued): D (&)

Online  Micro financing

transaction facilitating
services services Unallocated Total

WERS NEmE
R % R KB Faay
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AR®TR ARBTE ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A831HIEF

==
(restated) B (g E51)
Segment revenue — external 5 E U = — I B 30,965 - - 30,965
Segment results DEBE L 17,270 — — 17,270
Unallocated income KOEBA 158,720
Unallocated expenses AR (21,363)
Profit for the year FRE A 154,627
Assets gE
Segment assets DHEE 224,616 - - 224,616
Unallocated assets RKOBEE
— Available-for-sale financial —AtHEEREE
assets 158,710
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRBREEY 62,721
— Others —Hfh 4,015
Total assets o8 E 450,062
Liabilities g
Segment liabilities DHEEE 101,428 - - 101,428
Unallocated liabilities AALEE 26,929
Total liabilities BRE 128,357
Other information Hi &R
Interest income SR ON 579 — 323 902
Gain on disposal of available-for-  HEAHLESHMEE
sale financial assets gy 20,184 — 157,831 178,015
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — N B L E U 151 - - 1571
Gain from a bargain purchase HEE W 372 — — 372
Deemed gain on disposal of HEAREESREEL
available-for-sale financial assets 18 fE M a8 93 - — 93
Depreciation of property, plantand %1% - BE KRR ETE
equipment (551) - - (551)
Amortisation of intangible A E S
assets (258) - - (258)
Impairment loss on available-for- A & & B & E R E
sale financial assets BB (100) - - (100)
Impairment loss on N RIBREE S
prepayments (132) - - (132)
Income tax expense PAS B (4,518] - (17,581] (22,099]
Additions to non-current assets FRBEENE 379 — — 379

There is no single customer which contributed to 10% or more REZE2017F12A3HILFE  HEE—FF
revenue to the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 {5 AR E B U5 H110% 8L A F (20164 © 4E) -
(2016: nil).
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7. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WA HEMBARKZE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, mainly represents the WATMBASEENEXRE  T2EXRE
service income from the provision of online transaction services by FRREAIEHESCHES LBEBA
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online PR MEFHRBAFPIEEFHGEE
game users, and providing mobile top-up service to mobile FERGREEE EZ RS - BN
subscribers, provision of micro financing facilitating services, BRERNRS  REREERRE
provision of financing guarantee service, provision of information REEERMRE RREERESE REER
technology services and provision of advertising services net of HUEBREER) MR A « A -
business tax. An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as Hiplg AR WD HTOT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETF T
Revenue: WA
Provision of online transaction services REEEZ RS 11,441 30,560
Provision of micro financing facilitating RENDFERE RN RE
services 13,885 —
Provision of financing guarantee service R R E ERR 493 -
Provision of information technology services RUEE BRI RE 583 407
Provision of advertising services REES REERS " 4
26,413 30,965
Other income and gains: Hh W A R W :
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESREEN
financial assets (note 18(c) and (d)) U %5 (B 51 18((c) F2.(d) 35,687 178,015
Written back of trade payables 5 RN FIE 2D 1,315 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) & — BB A R M
(P FE40) 767 151
Interest income AMEMA 485 902
Government grants BT 5 B 80 38
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE WER&BRZE
equipment 66 —
Loss on disposal of financial assets at BRATEFABRZNESRE
fair value through profit or loss BEEHEEE (420) -
Exchange gain B 3, I A = 728
Deemed gain on disposal of BIEHEHEESR
available-for-sale financial assets & E R U s (P FE39(b))
(note 39(b)) — 93
Others Hh 73 56
38,053 179,983
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MMEMAL
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETTT
Interest on bank borrowings TERF B 794 -

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BRFTE K %/ B <)

/!

CREDIT/(EXPENSE) Al (B 1])
The Group's (loss)/profit before income tax credit/(expense) is arrived AEBBRAESREL(AX)(E
at after charging: 18),/ BRI T SEES S
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®BT T
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREEITE
equipment 434 551
Amortisation of intangible assets | A B 360 258
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AMHEemEERAERRE
financial assets _ 100
Impairment loss on prepayments BN FOREEE . 132
Impairment loss on inventories (note 23) FEREREE (HE23) 278 —
Impairment loss on trade receivables (note 21) & %FH&Z%’UEWTEE?% (FtsE21) 1,397 —
Minimum lease payments under EFLEEn RS
operating leases for buildings 1,476 719
Development costs [note (a)) e B B A (B 7% (a)) 11,344 7,782
Employee benefit expenses REBAF
lincluding directors’ remuneration (note 10)) (B E=E = & B (KT 5£10))
Wages and salaries Iﬁ & 22,784 11,807
Pension scheme contributions RIKE EHEIH R 2,353 1,296
Auditor’'s remuneration 5t A B 556 501
Note: k=4
(a)  Development costs mainly comprise staff costs RMB11,103,000 for the (a) HERAETEBFE IRA  HZE2017

year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB5,122,000), which are also
included in the employee benefit expenses disclosed separately above.

The Group did not capitalise any development costs for the year ended

31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules and Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies

10. = = Fr

BIFGEM E MR B R & B Q& HI (5
622B)EIBB_ER AT (BEEEHNFE

Ordinance, (Cap. 622) and the Companies [Disclosure of Information KB (B 622608 ) A EE - EERNAFE
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G] is as follows: EREHMAT :
Salaries,
allowance Pension
and benefit scheme
Fee inkinds* contributions Total
e EZBHER BiRecE
we B Y &= = st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT
Year ended BZE2017F
31 December 2017 1ZANBLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Sun R sE - 255 38 293
Mr. Tang Bin JE M, 5t A — 255 38 293
Non-executive directors FFHITESE
Mr. Wei g = = = o
Mr. Lan Xi LKk = = = —
Mr. Li Jianguang FRAEE = = - —
Independent non-executive ¥ IFHITEF
directors
Mr. Hou Dong BEREE 67 — — 67
Mr. He Qinghua fo] BB 22 5 A 67 — - 67
Mr. Yang Haoran BEREE 50 - - 50
184 510 76 770
Year ended BE2016F
31 December 2016 12A3MBLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Sun REE — 253 34 287
Mr. Tang Bin J& 3 o A - 254 34 288
Non-executive directors FHMITESE
Mr. Wei REL - - - -
Mr. Lan Xi LKk - - - -
Mr. Li Jianguang FREAEE — - - —
Independent non-executive B IEHITEE
directors
Mr. Hou Dong BRGE 72 - — 72
Mr. He Qinghua fo] B2 2 Sk 72 — - 72
Mr. Yang Haoran SR EE 54 - - 54
198 507 68 773
* These are in connection with the management of the affairs of the * HARNRREMBARIZEESEER -

Company and its subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: nil).

WM FHEERMERQF

REZ2017F12A3MBIEFENRN - &
FEERNEXRENETMFHINE L HE

(20164 « 4E) »
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

11.

120

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two (2016: none) of the five
highest paid employees were directors of the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2016: five] highest paid

employees of the Group are as follows:

MNEZBRESFHFEE

REE2017F12A31BIEFE A& &K

E%ﬂEé\qﬂﬁﬁ%)\%(zmﬁ )RR
NAEF - AKEBEEBK=F2016F A

BT EENTFMNFBERT

bl

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYHNR 1,176 2,283
Pension scheme contributions BIRESEHEIE R 193 143
1,369 2,426

The remuneration of all the five highest paid employees fell within the
band of nil to Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$") 1,000,000 for each of the

reporting periods.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None (2016: none) of the persons,
who were directors, waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12. FiEH (ER) BxX

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated at the
applicable tax rates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
enterprise income tax rate of all the PRC subsidiaries, except for
Shenzhoufu Software (see note (a) below), was 25% on their taxable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction of the
Cayman Islands during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

The amount of income tax (credit]/expense charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income represents:

Bl REREHREERBERRESE -

BT BEEREEREEER BE2017F
N2016F12A31BIEFE - AT BN
B AR (B 4E @ N A 8 (B ST e
)M FRBECEMSHMESIZEER
Bl % K B 25% 51 & -

AEBREE2017F12A318 Lt FE
BEBMNHAESBES R AERTMEIEA
(20164 « #/&) - HARN A& B R & 22017
FRANBLEFETECEBELEREM
FE R F - HURE AR B RS R
(20164 « 4&) -

EGe2mEBaERAMBOMEHRE
%)/ FXEEE:

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBFT

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax B EARE I8 — R B 1 PR ISH
— tax for the year —FRAMRE 751 20,993
— Over provision in respect of prior year - —FEBERE (1,274) -
(523) 20,993
Deferred tax (note 31) EFERIE (MH5E31) (932) 1,106
Income tax (credit)/expense FTiS® (%) Hx (1,455) 22,099
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continuea)  12.

The income tax (credit]/expense for the year can be reconciled to the
Group's (loss)/profit before income tax [(credit)/expense per the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

FrE8 (%), B X w

AEBRAFENREHESL) H
G e2EKERARRMSEHGE
%)/ R A (BER), ENERNT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT

(Loss)/profit before income tax (credit)/expense B P15 (3K %) 5 S A (E518),

ikl (614) 176,726

Tax on profit before income tax expense, B BT 15 %4 5 =2 A& A1 @9 7218

calculated at 25% (2016: 25%) R 25% 5T B (2016 4F : 25%) (153) 44,181
Effect of different tax rates in EMmalzER TR ENTE

other jurisdictions 392 (5)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses OB AZORBE T2 3,888 1,044
Tax losses not recognised RERTEEE 4,263 1179
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMBANR B E (7,691) (40,104)
Income tax on concession rate REEREAENRED

[note (a) (Bt 5% (a) — (1,777)
Withholding tax arising on undistributed Pt /&8 X B R 99 K s I EE A A

profits in a subsidiary (note (b)) TEHEL (T3 (b)) (880) 1,106
Over-provision in respect of prior year F—FERERE (1,274) -
Capital gain tax (note (c]) EAREER () — 16,475
Income tax (credit)/expense FTS® (%), Fx (1,455) 22,099
Notes: Bt
(a)  Shenzhoufu Software successfully obtained the “National High (a) 88 0 - B¢ A 2014F 10 A 30 B A I BL 1S

Technology Enterprise” status as at 30 October 2014 and renewed on 6
December 2017, and this qualification is valid for another 3 years
starting from 2017 and the applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate
was 15% for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 15%).

(b) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Accordingly,
Shenzhoufu Software, being a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC, is liable to a 10% withholding tax on its
accumulated undistributed profits as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continuea  12. FT 8% (I &), B8 X @)

Notes: (Continued) B aE : (8)

(c) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a transfer of a (c) REPEMBBEENER B EFHHEE
foreign company that holds the equity interest in an underlying China tax FREREERCEESENINEG QB A
resident enterprise is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax. The PRIGEMAEN - BABERI0%-

applicable tax rate was 10%.

13. DIVIDEND 13. R B
No dividend was proposed or paid during the years ended 31 REE2017F R2016F 128318 IEFE
December 2017 and 2016. BERREIR M TS -

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 8 RER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit BHRERBMNDERRRAER AEMAG
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted F = % M K 0 < 15 $£480,000,000 Bk FH
average of 480,000,000 ordinary shares (2016: 480,000,000) of the A% (2016 4F ¢ 480,000,000 %) 51 &
Company.
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential B E2017F12A3NE LFE I EE
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: ERRET WAL KR2INEREFRF
nil). (20165 : &) -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. %  BENRKZE

Office Computer Motor
equipment equipment vehicles Total
WOAERB ERRB AE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARB T AR®F T AR®FT
31 December 2017 N2017512A318
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1H1H 265 3,106 1,193 4,564
Additions NE - 243 1,197 1,440
Disposal & - (7) (448) (455)
Disposed through disposal FHRLENBATM
of subsidiary (note 40(a)) & (B &£ 40(a)) - (35) - (35)
At31 December 2017 #20174 12431 A 265 3,307 1,942 5,514
Accumulated depreciation: 2T E
At 1 January 2017 R2017E 1818 243 2,040 776 3,059
Charge for the year FERMEk 4 325 105 434
Eliminated on disposals HE R 3 - (9) (376) (385)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12 8318 247 2,356 505 3,108
Net book value: IREFE -
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31 A 18 951 1,437 2,406
31 December 2016 2016%12831H
Cost: DN
At 1 January 2016 R2016E1H1H 260 2,895 1,193 4,348
Additions NE 5 180 — 185
Acquired through business BREBETWRE
combination (note 39(b)) (P 5E39(b)) — 35 — 35
Disposed through disposal FBLENEAR
of subsidiary (note 40(b)} ifi & (BT Ex400b)) - (4) - (4)
At31 December 2016 R2016%12 A31 B 265 3,106 1,193 4,564
Accumulated depreciation: 2EITE
At 1 January 2016 M2016F1A1H 242 1,688 579 2,509
Charge for the year FRHkR 1 353 197 551
Eliminated on disposals ek Ok - (1) - (1)
At31 December 201 #2015 12431 A 243 2,040 776 3,059
Net book value: BRI FEE
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 22 1,066 417 1,505
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BEFLEE
Computer
software
EREH
RMB'000
ARBTT
31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2017 MR2017F181H 5,357
Disposed through disposal of subsidiary (note 40(a)) 738 S B A R W & (M 5T 40(@) (2,074)
At 31 December 2017 MW2017F12A31H 3,283
Accumulated depreciation: E i
At 1 January 2017 M20179F1 818 2,355
Charge for the year F AR 360
Eliminated on disposal (note 40(a)) o 5 B 4 85 (P 5 40(a)) (208)
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 2,507
Net book value: FREHE :
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 776
31 December 2016 2016F12A31H
Cost: BRAS :
At 1 January 2016 201651 A1H 4,559
Additions NE 194
Acquired through business combination (note 39(b)) i B T A O UUE (BT EE39(b) 2,074
Disposed through disposal of subsidiary (note 40(b)) FEELEWRE AR ML & (MFE40(b) (1,470)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 A31H 5,357
Accumulated depreciation: REt i E
At 1 January 2016 M2016F 1818 2,428
Charge for the year F bR 258
Eliminated on disposal I 5 8H (331)
At 31 December 2016 201612 431 H 2,355
Net book value: FRENHE :
At 31 December 2016 201612 H31H 3,002

HBMHEFHEERMERLXE —F-—LFEFH
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B AT MIRE

R2017F12A31HARAIEZEW B R A
ZEEBIR

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

Place and date Issued and fully paid share Attributable equity Place of operation

Name of incorporation capital/registered capital interests held by the Company and principal activities
£ AR B R B S BRTRAZKRES HERES FAAMBEERAEEZ SEBBRIZEH
Direct Indirect
EE F:3
Shen Zhou Xing Limited Hong Kong, 19 May 2008 Issued and fully paid 100% — Investment holding in Hong Kong
["Shen Zhou Xing”) HK$1 for 1 ordinary share
WHATERAR &% 2008F5 719 BEITRARRA REEREER
(M7 TR1B T EBR
Shenzhoufu Software' PRC, 3 July 2008 Registered capital of — 100% Provision of consulting and
RMB110,906,740 technical supporting services to
group companies in the PRC
AT B hE - 20084 7A3H EMEAARE B e B ) £ B 2 AR
110,906,740 7 i R BT S R R
Beijing TJYL? PRC, I July 2005 Registered capital of — 100% Provision of online transaction
RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
I RR B 200567 A1R AMERARE R BR A 25 R
10,000,0007T
Beijing Shenzhoufu? PRC, 25 May 2011 Registered capital of — 100% Provision of online transaction
RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
AN S hE - 2011F5825R AMEAARE RABEREE LR SR
10,000,0007T
Beijing Youxiping® PRC, 2 August 2012 Registered capital of - 100% Profit sharing with online game
RMB10,000,000 operators and provision of
advertising services in the PRC
b R ER’ B 201268 A2H AMERARYE AEBLBEBELRET R
10,000,0007C EFERHERS RERRE
Prajna Technology Limited British Virgin Islands Issued and fully paid 100% — Investment holding
["Prajna Technology”) ("BVI"), 30 April 2015 United States Dollar
["US$") 1 ordinary share
Prajna Technology Limited HBRZES BETRHAERAR % &R
([Prajna Technology]) ([EBREZES]) [EVAETANE:§:1
20154F4 A30 8
Joy Credit’ Cayman Islands, Issued and fully paid - 70.4% Investment holding
3 February 2015 US$9,460 ordinary shares (2016: 48.52%)
Joy Credit® REeHS - BETRHRRE REER
20152 A3H 94605 L @A
Lexiang Online Net Limited®  Hong Kong, Issued and fully paid — 70.4% Investment holding

ETERBBERDA

Wanlefu Software

16 February 2015
2015528 16H

PRC, 11 September 2015

HK$1 ordinary share
BETRHBRRE
T LERK

Issued and fully paid

(2016: 48.52%)

70.4%

REER

Investment holding

Technology Limited™ US$1,950,000 ordinary shares (2016: 48.52%)
MENTHRE B - 201569 A 11 R BEETRAREA REZK
BB AT 1,950,000 7T % & ik
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuvea  17. TAK B 2 T B 1% & )

Place and date Issued and fully paid share Attributable equity Place of operation

Name of incorporation capital/registered capital interests held by the Company and principal activities
&8 MR E R A BRTRARRE EAMELX AQIMBEEERIER CEBYRITEH
Direct Indirect
BEE GE:3

Wanlefu Technology”

PRC, 25 November 2014

Registered capital of
RMB1,350,000

[2016: 63.10%)

66.60% Provision of promotion and
distribution services of online
game products for online game

operators
MERBE’ FE - 2014F 11 A25A8 ERlIE=F:N AEEBELBRUBEER
AR #1,350,0007T EmNERELS HRS

Shenzhou Net Technology
Limited

MM BEERBERAR

Xinjiang Nine Domain’

A

Beijing Kuaihuika™

Hong Kong, 3 June 2016

BB 201656 A3A

PRC, 6 April 2017
FE2017FLA6H

PRC, 25 December 2015

Issued and fully paid HK$1
ordinary share

BETRAREAK
BT E B

Registered capital of
RMB30,000,000
& A AR #30,000,0007T

Registered capital of
RMB1,000,000

100% Investment holding

RAEEK

100% Investment holding
REEK

51% Provision of micro financing
facilitating services in the PRC

ERREFR Bl 20179 12A25R & A A R #1,000,0007 1R B /)N B R R T AR A
Shenzhen Huisantong®’ PRC, 7 July 2015 Registered capital of — 51% Investment holding
RMB5,000,000

ARYIE =@ FRE 20156 7A78 & A AR¥5,000,0007T REAER

Notes: Bt s

1. Shenzhoufu Software, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Shen Zhou 1. BN RBEMNTHEERZENBR
Xing, is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the laws A RIERBEAEEM A EEERE -
of the PRC.

2. Interests existed by virtue of certain contractual arrangements as 2. K ESEMAMETAENR RS
described in note 5(e). o

3. On 29 August 2017, Prajna Technology acquired 20,700,000 ordinary 3. 720174 8 A 29 A » Prajna Technology

AR & R EH396,00ET(HERAR
#52,632,0000) B — & EXERBREF
f% 15 Joy Credit &) & i [ 18 0.0001 3 7T &9
20,700,000/% E i@ AR - b 18 - REB R
Joy Credit#) B& # F148.52% L F+ Z=70.4% °

shares of US$0.0001 par value per share of Joy Credit from a non-
controlling shareholder, at cash consideration of approximately
US$396,000 (equivalent to RMB 2,632,000). After that, the Group's equity
interest in Joy Credit increased from 48.52% to 70.4%.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18

128

Notes: (Continued)

Lexiang Online Net Limited is a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Joy
Credit.

Wanlefu Software Technology Limited, a 100% directly owned subsidiary
of Lexiang Online Net Limited, is registered as limited company under
the laws of the PRC.

On 1 January 2017, 60% equity interests of Beijing Kuaihuika was
acquired by Beijing Youxiping. See note 39(a) for further details. In July
and August 2017, the Group’s equity interests in Beijing Kuaihuika was
diluted by 9% due to capital injection from two independent non-
controlling individual shareholders by RMB490,000, of which, RMB80,000
was outstanding and recognised as other receivables as at 31 December

2017, and Beijing Kuaihuika became 51% owned subsidiary of Beijing
Youxiping.

Shenzhen Huisantong is a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Beijing
Kuaihuika.

The above table lists out the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2017 which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, resultin particulars of excessive length.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

17. R B 2 B VR E @)

Bt - (#8)

LFTHEBRBHAR R E HJoy Creditdy
HEZEMBAR -

MENEHMEERABTBEZTER
BEARAANZENBELR RIS
BOEEEMABERAR -

R2017F 1B 18 - b REERWEIL R
REROWBE - FREZHE F2
B M 5E39(a) e 2017678 %8 A » A&
ERIERREROBREHNMEZIE L
JEFERE A A BT A A R ¥490,0007T
MmEEEI% - Hip AR %80,0007T i K B
B WR2017F12A3NBRERBEME
W aE - mdt R E R AL R EEUR
BESI %D ZHBAR -

RINE=ZBRIERRERNEEEE
MELE -

P EEARARABEE-_T—LF
TIA=T-HZIEWBRR -EF
RBE ZERAHAFEXALEEER
TEIBNAREARD 2 BEEFE
EERR AFMEMHEQRSEHR
REZEHBRITE -

1BARKEEHEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBTT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELMIRAES  HAAE
(notes (a), (b), (d) and (e)] (Mf3E (@) ~ (b) ~ (d) R (e)) 51,839 30,280
Listed equity security, at fair value FARAFES  BHATE
(note (c)) (P &E(c)) 84,994 144,006
136,833 174,286
Less: Provision of impairment loss B R EEERE - (100)
136,833 174,186
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The amount represents investment in 13 (2016: 10) private companies in
the PRC, which are engaged in Bitcoin trading, social communication,
development of Blockchain technology and crytocurrency, IT system
development, peer-to-peer lending service platform, online media
platform, virtual currencies mining, retailing business, and investment
holding business in the PRC. The unlisted available-for-sale equity
securities are measured at cost less impairment at each reporting date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that fair
value cannot be reliably measured. The directors of the Company have
no intention to dispose of the available-for-sale financial assets at the
end of reporting period.

As at 31
investments included 25.9% equity interests in Leyu Limited ("Leyu”)

December 2015, the Group's strategic unlisted equity

and 20% equity interests in Aiqgigi Information. These companies are not
accounted for using equity method as the Group did not have significant
influence over these companies, evidenced by the lack of any direct or
indirect involvement at board level, and were accounted for as available-
for-sale financial assets. During the period from 1 January 2016 to 31
October 2016, the Group’s equity interest in Leyu is diluted from 25.9%
to 21.62% since Leyu has introduced new investors. As at 31 December
2016 and 2017, as a result of disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets as further described in notes 18(c) and 39(b), the Group held less
than 20% equity interests in any available-for-sale financial assets.

On 31 October 2016, Prajna Technology, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, together with Starshine Global Investment Limited,
Sanbao Star Limited, Mr. Zhang Jinghua and Mr. Wang Lisong, which
are other existing shareholders of Leyu (collectively referred to as the
“Sellers”] entered into a sale and purchase agreement ["Agreement”)
with Chong Sing Holdings FinTech Group Limited ("Chong Sing”)
[previously known as “Credit China FinTech Holdings Limited”), a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Marvel Paradise
Group Limited ("Purchaser”], a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Credit
China. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Sellers conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase 48% of the
entire issued share capital of Leyu and its subsidiaries (together the “Leyu
Group”).

1. ARHEEHEEw

(b)

(c]

WM FHEERMERQF

ZEEERRE A+ =M (20165  + )
LEQARZIRE EHMAREREKSE
HEERS HeBi - ERERINE
mEmEERAE - TEAHRE PPEE
RisFa MBEBEYs EBREBK
W TEEBRRELERERK -FL™
AEIERAFSFNERSE B HIRK
R EFTE - AR RFEEEMT
HEREEKR Bl ARAEEREA
HAFEREASEAE - RISEHE
APREEEELENHEESRHE
Eo

R2015412 8318 » A £ B M % B4
3 F %= R & B #F A Leyu Limited
(TLeyu) 9259% EE KB BEELFE
B20%Em BEASBEEHHEFSHRS
FMEHIBELE  AEHZEQR
WEERKFEN  MZSQRKRERE
HAEANER  MARIEIHRLESHRE
E - R2016F1A1BE20165F10A31H
B AR Leyus| AFTIREE  NEE
R Leyu B 4% 25 B8 25.9% 8 & £21.62% °
20164 K% 2017412318 AR H &
Al E Bl & A& (20 BT FE18(c) & 39(b)
) AREBREMAEEE
SREEPRFB20%ATH

25 25 o
m

M2016F10A31H AR A& 2 E M
[E A &) Prajna Technologyi# & Leyu #y H
fth 35 5 A% 5 Starshine Global Investment
Limited * Sanbao Star Limited * 58 4 2 5&
ERTENMEEGBIES]) A 3riE
BRIFEEBBER AR (HH]) (FEI+
EEERKERARARF) (—HEHRER
FIGEMETRH DR kP BEENEE
Mff B 2 §Marvel Paradise Group Limited
(TEFDITCEERZ(BED - 1RE
ZhE BAFERGRAELEE MEHR
ERHREBE ey RHWEB QR (5
TElleyus @) 23 2 21T R A H948%
M o
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) [Continued)

In accordance with the Agreement, the Group disposed of approximately
11.62% of the entire issued share capital of Leyu Group at total
consideration of approximately RMB193,681,000, of which 40% is settled
by cash including approximately RMB28,407,000 and US$7,231,000, and
the remaining consideration are settled by issuing of 172,896,102 shares
[the "Consideration Shares”) of Chong Sing, at an issue price of
HK$0.7681 per share. All were settled during the year ended 31
December 2016. For details of the transactions, please refer to the
respective announcements of the Company dated 31 October 2016 and
21 November 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 25 November

2016.

As at 14 December 2016, being the completion date, the fair value of the
Consideration Shares was approximately RMB109,290,000 at market
quoted price of HK$0.71 per share, and the fair value of total
consideration was approximately RMB187,856,000. Upon the completion
of the transactions, the Group effectively held 10% equity interests in
Leyu Group, and 0.80% of the enlarged issued share capital of Chong
Sing, and the Group recognised a gain of disposal of available-for-sale
financial asset of approximately RMB178,015,000 in profit or loss during

the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed of a total
of 124,936,000 shares of Chong Sing at cash consideration of
RMB113,795,000, of which all was settled in the year. The Group
recognised a gain of disposal of available-for-sale financial asset of
approximately RMB34,822,000 in profit or loss, and reclassified
investment revaluation reserve of RMB18,777,000 to profit or loss upon

the disposal.

(d) On 12 May 2017, the Group disposed an unquoted available-for-sale
financial asset which was principally engaged in software development,
at cash consideration of RMB3,865,000. The consideration was fully
settled and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of RMB865,000 in

profit or loss.

(e) On 9 August 2017, the Group entered into two agreements with an
independent company for investing a virtual currencies mining fund (the
“Fund”). An independent fund managing company (the “Fund Manager”)
is engaged in managing the operation of virtual currencies mining.
Pursuant to the agreements, the Group agreed to invest, i
RMB12,000,000, representing 23.3% non-voting right of the Fund. Any
investment income from production of virtual currencies would be
distributed to the Group in accordance with the percentage of interest in
the Fund. The Group did not have significant influence over this
company, evidenced by (i) the instrument does not give the Group any
voting power regarding the financial and operating activities of the Fund
and (i) the lack of any direct or indirect involvement at board level, in
particular the financial and operating policy decisions of the Fund, and
no right to appoint or remove the Fund Manager, and the investment
was therefore accounted for the investment as available-for-sale

financial asset.
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F10A31H R2016F1MA2TH 2 A&
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R2016F 128148 (AN H) - RERK
ME R FELN R AR109,290,0007T
ERTEREONB T EREQF
8 #) 5 AR ¥ 187,856,0007C ° AR 5 7%
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R —RHEE QTR
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Share of net assets of an associate DG —EEE RARFEE 1,248 -
Goodwill [EES 1,485 —
2,733 —
The Group acquired 30% equity interest in Zhuhai Aerfaniu Technology RNE B P 20179F3 A 24 H LA A KR #3,000,000 7T
Limited for a cash consideration of RMB3,000,000 on 24 March 2017. CHEEREWBREMBEFREEGRAA
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2017 are as follow: BI30% Rz o AN BB & A B R 20174F 12 A 31
Hz&BEmT:
Place of incorporation, operation and Percentage of ownership interests/
Name principal activity voting rights/profit share
28 EMAY  EERTEEZDHE BEAERZ RER SERNEIH
Zhuhai Aerfaniu Technology Limited Quantitative Trading in the PRC
REMBAFRERBER AT RAABETEER S 30%
Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted for any BERRZMATBEER Rt RRZE
difference in accounting policies: ] ZRFE:
2017
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
As at 31 December M12A318
Current assets MEEE 4,125
Non-current assets EREEE 48
Current liabilities mEaE (13)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE -
Net assets FEE 4,160
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate REEDIEMERNRFEE 1,248

Period from 24 March to 31 December

EH3A248E12A318 |FHRE

Revenue W g —
Loss for the period A B (890)
Other comprehensive income for the period HA A Aty 2 T U A —
Total comprehensive income for the period HAZEKRALE (890)

Dividends received from associate

U ER B 1% A AR -

Group's share of the results of the assaciate REBEDSEBERAIEE (267)
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20.

132

GOODWILL

20. &

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

At 1 January M1A1H - —
Acquired through business combination 7 T A O OB (T EE39(a))

(note 39(al) 509 —

At 31 December M12A318 509 —

Goodwill arose from a business combination of Beijing Kuaihuika
during the year ended 31 December 2017 [note 39(a).

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been determined from a
value-in-use calculation based on cash flow projections from formally
approved budgets covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3% (2016: nil.

BEEABNEZE2017F12A318 1LF
B FRREBRZEBE O (KIE3%a)) °

MENAWEFECREAFHENL
EREMFNREREFEEREEM
Er- -BhAFHNRESREER G
INHE P19 R 3% (20165 « ) HEH -

2017 2016
Discount rate Bh IR % 15% N/A T A
Operating margin* A5 R 8%-25% N/A 7~ A
Growth rate within the five-year period hFEHAERR 10%-50% N/A i A
* defined as profit before income tax expense divided by revenue * T E TR BB ETIS B AR A BR AUk =

The discount rate is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to
Beijing Kuaihuika. The operating margin and growth rate within the
five-year period were determined based on management expectation

and the result of the market research and prediction.
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. EZ EWFIE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBET T

Trade receivables from: EWRTIALTHE S EHRHRE :
— Third parties —F=h 2,170 8,685

Less: provision for impairment on trade B 5 e YRR IE R (E

receivables (1,397) —
773 8,685

The Group normally does not grant credit period to its customers. For

a minor portion of customers who are granted credit period, the credit

period is generally 90 days. The Group seeks to apply strict control

over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. All the trade

receivables are non-interest bearing.

The aging analysis of trade receivables [net of impairment losses)

based on transaction date are as follows:

AEB-—RBRBEATETNGTEFEE
H-REAEEHNIBEFPME &
EM—RRIOKR - REB RN EBES
R Y B E R IE A E R EE R R
- FMBEZRUFELGRRE

B REFAEIKRBEERR) ERXS

HEBRE DT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

0 to 3 months 0ZE31E A 773 8,685

3 to 6 months 3E6EA - —

6 months to 1 year 6ER =14 = -

1to 2 years 1824 - —

773 8,685

The analysis of the Group's trade receivables that were past due but RERSHR AEBEZEHE B KRR
not impaired as at the end of each of the reporting periods is as BZESRERBKEBNDTOT

follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired [note (a) BE 7R 380 A 75 AROR(E (P 7% () 773 8,685

WM FHEERMERQF
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. B 5 B W IE @
Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as ESRWGEREREZESHNOT :
follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTT

At beginning of the year REA = —

Impairment loss recognised WRAEEE 1,397 -

At the end of the year RFER 1,397 —

Note: M &

(a]  The balances that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide (a) AR HA R R (B /Y 45 4 BL AT BRI A M
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. RN RKERFER -

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual assessment R E B RIENF4NG)PTE B € 5T B R

based on the accounting policy stated in note 4(h){ii). S B 5F 14 BERORE B 18 o
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

2. £
L

noBRERHEME

—_
;'#q-

RECEIVABLES i
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Prepayments in respect of online transaction 4% %2 5 iR % ¥8 14 7 (M 5% (a)
services (note (a)) 52,653 58,354
Other prepayments Hia R % 5,179 2,600
Advances to an investment classified as 5_7\7%/5\7/%—_[1/\ TEEMEER
available-for-sale financial asset and its HERWEAR 2R ERK
fellow subsidiaries (note (b)) (B 7% (b)) — 9,101
Advances to independent third parties (note (c)) #3228 = 5 83 (I 7E(c) 34,101 -
Other receivables [note (d)) H A & YR IR (B FE (d)) 29,797 5,023
Deposits } 83 3
121,813 75,081
Less: Prepayments for acquisition of property, & : WY % « B X%
plant and equipment Z AN IR (1,679) -
Long-term prepayments RETET FRIB (3,500) (2,600)
116,634 72,481

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s prepayments were prepayments to online game operators
and distributors of telecommunication companies in amount of
RMB52,653,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB58,354,000).

The advances are unsecured, interest-free and repayble on demand.

The advances are repayable by 31 December 2018, of which, advances of
RMB24,781,000 are secured by corporate guarantee, with interest
charged at 3% per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's other receivables were
mainly (i) deposits for potential business development projects of
RMB18,950,000 (2016
cancelled in 2017 and 89% of the deposits were subsequently refunded:; (ii)
advances to staff for business development of RMB2,154,000 (201é:
RMB1,263,000]); and [iii) required guarantee funds deposited to online
game operators of RMB840,000 (2016: RMB2,035,000). Under
cooperation agreements with the online game operators, the Group is

- nil] and such development projects were

required to make guarantee funds of a pre-agreed amount to the online
game operators upon entering into the relevant cooperation
agreements.

(b)

(c]

(d)

WM FHEERMERQF

AKEEE%EH BB EEEEER
FEEARDHEBENBRIE - 12017
F12 831 E K& %8 A A R #52,653,000
JC (20164 « AR #58,354,0007T) °

ZEF/RER RERZBEREE

ZB R N2018FE12ANBEE - &
o AR B24,781,000 T B A kil 1 ¥
BREE FHEBI% -

MR2017F 128318 st AR EE H A
ERFREDEZEAENBEEBTRER
B & & A K ¥18,950,0007T (20164 :
) MZEEBEHENR2017FBUH -
BERPPWHMRESCRERER  (I)FA
EKBERE TR ARK?2154,0007T
(20164 © AR ¥1263,0007T) : M (i) B
MBELEHFEBELSARMNORESAR
# 840,000 7T (2016 © A R #2,035,000
) RIBFEBPEHEELRETLNE
Bt @ AEBERI L BBA ERE
HTW%EL/E?Q@ SREEH — B EWH
E & R AIRE
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 7§
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Pre-paid mobile top-up credits AN FHEETEDHE 5,068 19,829
Online game products WEERER 19 103
5,087 19,932

24,

25.

136

At 31 December 2017, a provision of RMB278,000 (2016: nil) against
the carrying amount of pre-paid mobile top-up credit has been made.

M2017F 128318  CHENFHRES
7t {E & %8 AR B AT 32 B B A R %5 278,000
TC (201645 : 4#) o

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED 24. R B E N R RIE
COMPANY
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF R ARBTT
Beijing Qiandaibao Payment Technology Ltd.  dt RERBE L MM BER A 7
(“Beijing QDB") (TERERE]D = 484

The related company is either controlled by the directors or significant
influenced by the directors of the Company, and the balance is non-
trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, Beijing QDB was disposed
to an independent third party and ceased to be a related company of
the Group.

Maximum amount due from the related party is as follows:

MERRAREEEHNARARAES
EXFE MREEBR/IFEZNLEG
B 2B REEREE - #=2017
FNRANALFE EREREREE
THEYUE=TATBERREEZ@ER
IR

EWBEA LRSS REDT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBT T

Beijing QDB ERERE 484 1,307
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE AN g 3¢ ph 4
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 25. %é%ﬁﬁk?ﬁﬁﬁﬁé

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETF T

Investment in Bitcoin, at fair value BEAFEKEL IS — 2,379

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bitcoin is based on quoted
market price.
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26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits placed to certain banks
as securities in return for the banks to provide loans to the Group [note
30). These pledged bank deposits have a maturity of less than one
year as at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil]. At 31 December 2017,
pledged deposits carry interests at an average rate of 2.21% (2016:
nill per annum.

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26. EEARITHERK

EHBRITERETRE TRITNGER
A B IR IT A AN 5 B4R B A K 48
(B 3E30) - 3% 5 B || R 1717 5 2017
F12A3EMEEBHA TR —F (20164F :
T) o A2017%12 A318 » B\ FERIZE
FIGFEFE2.21% (20165F : T)FHEB °

27. RERREEEY

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBF T

Cash and bank balances (note (a)) Be RIBTTES (MsE(a)) 83,217 164,808
Cash and cash equivalent held on behalfof HRE—MWEBEBARZESEED

a director of a subsidiary [note (a) and (b)) RekBEEEY (it &lb) 102 —

83,319 164,808

Notes:

(a) The cash and cash equivalents of RMB48,056,000 was denominated in
RMB at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB102,702,000). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC Government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

(b) The Group maintains segregated account with authorised institutions to
hold client’'s monies arising from its provision of micro financing
facilitating services business. The Group has classified the client's
monies as cash and bank balances held on behalf of a director of
subsidiary under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the corresponding
liabilities as other payables [note 29) to respective client on the grounds
that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of client's monies (see
note 35(al(i] for details).

a)  MR2017%F12A318 B REESEY
& AN R ¥ 48,056,0007T (20165 + AR ¥
102,702,0007T) * AAREGFHE - AR
ABTAEREBREYE WEESELSP
B 78 = B 4 B AT b 00 &9 BE 5 BRI &Y
MR-

RITAS DR EE ARITERN XM
FEERBREA B RITER T FRR A
Y EEOCREEREFBITHEFEN -

b) AEE#BHEERTXRENBILIERS
LHBEREPARBNEREFRNRS
X¥BEMEENSE - AEBCRERA
HBRARNARBEESLSIBELD
CHEIEARKR—HHNBRARNESH
EMReRBTES TBEBEE®N
T B EER A E i A FOE (M 5E29)
HEFSBEOTMNEEBEEE GGF
15 B M 3E350)(1) °
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28.

29

138

TRADE PAYABLES 28. B 5 BT KIE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREF T
Trade payables to R TIATHE S - RIE :
— Third parties —F=h 7,997 89,708
7,997 89,708

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally
granted credit terms ranging from 1-30 days.

The aging analysis of trade payables based on transaction date are as

BOERNREARRE AEE-—REX
MEEHNTFIENX -

EORNREERIZBANKRE DN

follows: N
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREFT
0 to 3 months 0&3M@A 4,035 85,354
3to 6 months 3ZE A A 2,534 9
6 months to 1 year bERE1F 248 53
Over 1 year 1Ak 1,180 4,292
7,997 89,708

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. Htt B RIE R BT B A

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR T T

Receipts in advance T8 U AR 3K 2,010 4,600

Other payables and accruals Hih I HIBREER 14,679 5,722

Liabilities arising from financial guarantee MEERANELEZAR

contracts 822 —

Other tax payables H A R 18 = 392
Amount payable to a director of a subsidiary BN —ZHB AR EE A

(note 35(al(i)) (Ff$ 5 35(a)(i)) 102 -

17,613 10,714
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(Continued)

30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. 8R1TBE R

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T

Bank loans due for repayment —FRNAEBERITER

within one year [note (a)) (Bt 5E(a)) 61,000 -
Note: B3 -
(a)  The bank loans are secured by bank deposits of US$9,950,000 (equivalent (a) RITERHII50000EFT(HEHERAR

to RMB65,015,000) (note 26). The bank loans bear interest at the rate of
5.0025% to 6.5250% per annum and are repayable within one year.

# 65,015,000 7T ) 2 R 17 15 53K 4 (BT 7
26)  SRITERF BN FFE5.0025%E
65250% 2 BZER—FNEE -

31. DEFERRED TAX 31. BB IE
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements REAFELBEFEERRELHIESR
during the current and prior year: BEREB IS -
Deferred tax liabilities EERERE
Undistributed Revaluation of
earnings of PRC intangible
subsidiary assets Total
Bl B A A BREEN
Y R 23 K & F E st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT AREF T
1 January 2016 R2016%F1H1H 6,873 — 6,873
Charged to profit or loss EREEElS 1,106 — 1,106
Acquisition through business FREE O
combination (note 39(b)) (M 7E39(b)) — 519 519
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H
and 1 January 2017 K2017F1R1H 7,979 519 8,498
Charged to profit or loss ST AEZE (880 (52) (932)
Reversal upon disposal of a subsidiary e — M EA R %
(note 40(a)) Y=l (Bt = 40(a)) - (467) (467)
At 31 December 2017 R2017912A31H 7,099 — 7,099
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31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

32.

140

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

31. iE FE B 18 )

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB24,971,000 (2016: RMB7,920,000) which would expire in five
years’ time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

the unused tax losses as the directors considered that the impact is

minimal.

Expiry years of unrecognised tax losses:

EEREE S @

MR2017F12A31H  AEERNAE A
% E 1R A AR B 24,971,0007T (2016 4 ¢
AR #7,920,0007T) « B AFREE -
HRESERAETETK ML ER XD
ARBEERRERECHIEEE -

oK B 3 R 598 O T 2
2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

2018 20184 107 107
2019 20194 962 962
2020 20204 2,240 2,240
2021 2021 4F 4,611 4,611
2022 2022 4F 17,051 —
SHARE CAPITAL 32. iR A<
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRA
2017 2016
Number RMB’000 Number RMB'000
g ARBF R # B ARBFT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of FR%0.0013E T HY
US$0.001 each ®3E R 1,000,000,000 6,148  1,000,000,000 6,148
Issued and fully paid BETRAR
Ordinary shares of FM0.001 =TT
US$0.001 each EEAR
At beginning and end of REIRER
the year 480,000,000 2,941 480,000,000 2,941
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management policy

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to

maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings
disclosed in note 30, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 27,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising paid up
share capital and reserves. The directors of the Group review the
capital structure regularly. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost and the risks associated with each class of the
capital.

Based on the recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debts
divided by total equity attributable to owners of the Company. The

gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

32, A (@)

EXEERK

AEBEEREANTIEZEEARRRER
SEREFELE YHAKEBRNESRL
T AR HER -

AEEEARARBHNMZEI0WE 2 RT
B RWEZIRBEZREMREEE
MEANRAER ARGEDAR 21
BRBRALFHE AKSBEEZTHNEN
BARB - FREBEHN MO EFR
BERARBREERELARR -

REEFNEEERL AEEBEBX
MRS RBETURBETHEBNE
EIREEBRFELBERERNRE -

AEBEREERGBLR(NERFR
BRUAARRIER ABGEDSER) BT
BR -BEREHRNEEABL X

™~

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
Debt &% 61,000 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BBReERBEEEED 83,319 164,808
Net debt BEB (22,319) (164,808)

Total equity attributable to owners RABHER AR AER
of the Company 323,661 310,420
Gearing ratio EEABLEX N/A N/A
FEH TEA
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33. RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Movements on the

Company’s reserves are set out below

33. & 1E

AEENFHEEDABINGEEEE
R - ARBNFHEHESHIWMT :

Share Accumulated
Company Vi NN Premium losses Total
B’ E 25t EE FER-C]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AR T T ARET T
(note (a)) [note (e))
(FF3E(a) (P 5E(e))
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A18 47,899 (15,973) 31,926
Loss and total comprehensive FABEREENEE
income for the year — (3,400) (3,400
As 31 December 2016 and M2016F 12 A31H
1 January 2017 & 20171 A1H 47,899 (19,373) 28,526
Loss and total comprehensive FABBERE2EWRES
income for the year — (2,572) (2,572)
As 31 December 2017 M2017F12H31H 47,899 (21,945) 25,954
(a) Share premium (a) B i=E

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value,

less of share issuing costs.
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33. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Capital reserve

The reserve is arising from the capital contribution from equity
holders resulted from the Reorganisation and also from the
deemed contribution from equity holders in connection with the
tax losses incurred by the related parties in prior years.

The deemed capital contribution from equity holders represents
the savings of income tax payable to tax authority for the
Group's business operated by the related parties that should
otherwise be incurred should the related parties be not in a tax
loss position, and the Group records this tax savings as capital
contribution from the equity holders and the equivalent amount
as income tax expense for the period.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant requlations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses), as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve shall be made before
distribution of dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve
fund can be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any.

Investment revaluation reserve

The amount represents cumulative net gains and losses arising
on recognising financial assets classified as available-for-sale
at fair value.

Retained earnings/accumulated losses

The amount represents cumulative net gains and losses

recognised in profit or loss.

33. #

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

WM FHEERMERQF

N
BEDREASHERRAALE
DRRAEREREARBEALR
B 1E R A A VBTSSR
B

BEREFAANITERMBEA
p 0N S VY RN Y
BN EHES  MEAEALLE
MIEER gL BmMEHRES
A 52 B o 5B Ut B IR E AR
REGSHAEANTIELREZREBEA
BRREMAMEHRAX -

ETE i R
BRAPBEABERRE  ARARN
FERIMEENOHEBERAREAER
BB AR RAR KRR R
wA (REEBEFERBRE)10%E
BEAEWHE BEEMRBERELM
BAR50% R LE - St RN E A
RAEEFTEAD KR ESAEL °
EEREBES I RFEERERAESF
REEBEBRMA) -

REEHH®E

HZREEEREATES R/
HEEEREEEEM R KE
KGR -

REBF R ER

ZEBEENBREEANRG; KA
N IEF R o
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 346. KD T M BEARR R

OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 7 AR®T R ARETF T
Assets BE
Non-current assets kERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries NG 17 34,207 34,207
Prepayments for acquisition of property, UWEE¥ % ~ BFE R &R ED
plant and equipment T8 R IE 1,679 -
35,886 34,207
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables B A5 R H Al R W OB 399 b4
Cash and cash equivalents HWERBEEEY 2,065 1,479
Total current assets MENEERLTE 2,464 1,543
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries M B R a8 8,699 3,683
Other payables and accruals H A 5B K et B A 756 600
Total current liabilities RBAEESE 9,455 4,283
Net current liabilities mEAEFE (6,991) (2,740)
NET ASSETS EEFH 28,895 31,467
Equity e
Issued capital BBITIRA 32 2,941 2,941
Reserves i 33 25,954 28,526
TOTAL EQUITY A 28,895 31,467

On behalf of the Board

RREFE
Wei Zhonghua Sun Jiangtao
o B
Director Director
BE EFE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had the

following material related party transactions:

(a) Related party transactions

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhang
Ming Fung ["Mr. Zhang”) being a director of a subsidiary,
entered into an arrangement with the Group under which
the Group provides services to manage the funds for Mr.
Zhang and introduces certain individual borrowers,
through the Group’s online micro financing platform, to
borrow monies from Mr. Zhang. The retained amount of
the funds of RMB102,000 are recognised as cash and
cash equivalents held on behalf of a director of a
subsidiary as disclosed in note 27 and corresponding
liabilities as other payables as disclosed in note 29. The
gross amount of the funds lent to individual borrowers for
the year ended 31 December 2017 were RMB49,060,000
(2016: nill. The Group generated micro financing
facilitating services income of approximately
RMB1,500,000 from Mr. Zhang during the year (2016: nil).
The credit risk of the loan receivables from individual
borrowers belongs to Mr. Zhang, and the Group did not

provide any financial guarantee service to Mr. Zhang.

On 1 January 2017, the Group acquired 60% equity
interests in Beijing Kuaihuika from Mr. Sun and Mr. Wei,
being directors of the Company, through Beijing Youxiping
at consideration of RMB30,000, of which, RMB18,000 was
outstanding to Mr. Sun as at 31 December 2017. See note

39(a) for further details.

BJB.HAEALXRS

BRABmEE MM D AHEESIN KEH
BETUATERBEALRS:

a) BEALRS

()  EZE2017F12A318ILFE
M EArESRPELEE
([RAEE])BAREBRITILT
—ELTH Bt AEEA
REFRERBUNERZE
CWBBRNEBENE LB
BEFEIIAETEABK
ARREEER FepES
AR #102,000 T R AR K
MBAREEHFENEAS R
e S E Y W27 4t
) DA K K fh FE S B/ MR R
BE (M9 E) - &
E2017F12A31H IEFE
BHREABRANESLRE
A A R ¥49,060,0007T (2016
FE) - AEEREFESR
RAEEM/NERERNRG
Fr 13 W A 49 A R % 1,500,000
TL (20166 « f%) o EUT(E A &
RABZMEERREBR
REE AEEWKRBERL
EREERTBERRE

i) M2017F1A18 XREEBE
BILRBEEBREREERR
EEBARRES)KEIL
RIRERO%MEZ KE
AANREE30,0007T 0 HAP KL
ER2017F 12831 B REE
KB A AR18,0007T © i —
H 18 R M RE3%(a) ©
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel compensation

(c)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’'s directors is as

follows:

B.EBAEALTXZ @
(b) S EEEBEAESH M

AEENTEEBASH(BE
EXNFARREENEB)MNT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR T T

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 1,819 1117

The remuneration of the Group's key management personnel
fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Beijing QDB provided
the usage of electronic payment platform to the Group without
any charges. The gross transaction amounts via the internet
payment platform for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
RMB505,442,000. There were no such transactions and the
arrangement was terminated during the year ended 31

December 2017

36. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments

146

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases for properties usually run for an initial period of
three months to two year.

At the end of each of the reporting periods, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases are payables as follows:

REZE 20174 K 2016512 A31 8 1t
FE - AEEXTZEE AS RN
18 E =% 7L £ 1,000,000 7T ©

) B=2016%12A31ALEEE 5
BREHASELRBEAETX
FFE & EHE216F12A831HIEF
E i EZBmOBANRTFeETRS
H) 4a %8 & A R 505,442,000 7T ©
BMZERGRZEZERBE20TE
12A3MBILEFEKIE-

36. F I

a) REHMERIE

FEBRRBRERANEEETY
X -REVMEROBRENSRE=
(BN ES R

REREHR  REBRERA B
HEEROENNARZERE
RIELRENT -

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR T T

Within one year —F R 1,759 —
One year to two years —EWE 2,470 -
4,229 —
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36. COMMITMENTS (continued) 36. A IE @)

(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAREE
Group Company
rEH AT
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT AR¥®TR ARETT
Commitments for acquisition of: U B& & ¥ :

— Property, plant and equipment — ¥ % « B & & 5,339 — 5,339 —
— Business [note) — ¥ (M) 31,500 — —_ —
36,839 — 5,339 —

Note: On 12 September 2017, Xinjiang Nine Domain, a wholly owned MEE - R20174F9 128 - KRR M2

subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Agreement’] to acquire the entire interests in
Maanshan Anxin Small Loan Limited, Maanshan Bai Yi Industrial
Co., Ltd., Maanshan Yu Ao Network Technology Co., Ltd. and
Jiangdong Sales Electricity Co., Ltd. for an aggregate
consideration of RMB35,000,000. Up to 31 December 2017, the
Group has paid refundable deposits of RMB3,500,000 to the
vendors.

On 9 February 2018, the vendors and Xinjiang Nine Domain
entered into a termination agreement, in which, it is agreed that
the Agreement is terminated and the vendors will refund the
deposits on or before 28 February 2018. Please refer to the
announcement dated 9 February 2018 for further details. On 28
February 2018, the deposits of RMB3,500,000 were fully refunded
to the Group.

WM FHEERMERQF

EMBARHBAETIES W
F(zmE) NKES& LELE
NBERERAR  B®ILEER
BEERAA - H8&ILFHMAK
BEARAFMIEEEERA
AMEEER RELEAAR
& 35,000,0007C ° B £ 2017412 A
A AKEENFEHFZAE
Zi 4 AR#3500,0007T °

MR2018F2R89R B H B =
NEEFT I RERLER
FUKRE R ER2018F2A28H
AR ERS BHE—FF
15 FL2HBEHA2018F289A
ZAER2018F2 A28 - &
AR¥3500000cE2EERETF
AER -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

B ZE2017F12 ANB L FE

The carrying amounts and fair value of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of each of the reporting periods

are as follows:

=
B

3. REHEITHEMT A

MEBANZTBRZENE SN/
TEMNERAEMAFEWDT :

2017 2016
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
fREE AEE REE A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTR ARBTT AR®TT
Financial assets EMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets: — A #/H & #) & B B E -
— Unlisted equity securities —FEETRAES 51,839 N/ATEA 30,180  N/A Ti@m*
— Listed equity securities — EWIRAE # 84,994 84,994 144,006 144,006
Fair value through profit or BBEmERTE
loss — held for trading: —fFEEE -
— Bitcoin at quoted market — BTSSR E — - 2,379 2,379
Loans and receivables: B RENKIE -
— Trade receivables —Z 5 e HIE 773 773 8,685 8,685
— Financial assets included in —HABMNR k2R
prepayments, deposits and H At fE Y FRIB &Y
other receivables TREE 116,634 116,634 72,481 72,481
— Amount due from a related — BN EEARIRIA
company — — 484 484
— Pledged bank deposits —BIERRITER 65,015 65,015 — —
— Cash and cash equivalents —-HekReEEYD 83,319 83,319 164,808 164,808
402,574 350,735 423,023 392,843
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial liabilities measured BB A G E /Y
at amortised cost: ZHERE:
_ Trade payables — B SR 2R 7,997 7,997 89,708 89,708
— Financial liabilities included — AR M ENRER
in other payables and EEtERTH
accruals THBE 17,613 17,613 10,714 10,714
— Bank borrowings —RITER 61,000 61,000 — —
86,610 86,610 100,422 100,422

* The available-for-sale financial assets are measured at cost less

impairment, and no fair value can be determine due to the range of

estimation is significant (see note 18].
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

3. REHEITHEMT A

(%)

TREH#EBAFHEMRATEE
MERIASR :

FIBA: EARBRTHREREERE
BEES Z B CREHE)

F2BA: ABIRBRENIIZEERE
B2ABEBARE BER
EEEGVER) L& (AR
EBRHEH) &

FIBM: HEBERYFERABE
MEHBBEZEELRABERA
g (hAEREARE) -

2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BIBHK HE2B& HEIBR Bt

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT ARBTR AR®BTR

Available-for-sale financial ARtHESREE
assets
— Listed equity securities at — FTRARES
quoted market price TBRE 84,994 — - 84,994
2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FI1ER FUER EIER @t

RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTET ARBTT ARBTT

Available-for-sale financial assets At HE LR EE

— Listed equity securities at — EHIRARE FH
quoted market %5 W(E 144,006 — - 144,006
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFTABRREN
through profit or loss cREE
— Bitcoin at quoted market — ¥ IS RE 2,379 - - 2,379
146,385 — - 146,385

wMBREHERKERAT —2—tEaerw 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #{Z2017F12A318 1L FE

38.

150

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other

payables, bank borrowings and balance with a related company.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of

the Company. Therefore, the risk on foreign currency risk is minimal.

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to currency risk is
limited to its bank balances denominated in US$ as majority of the
Group's transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB.

.EcREREERAFE

AEEBBEZRsRMEERAGE MRS
ER2EBEY BHREMERFR-
B REMBENRIE UEEBFERF
HREERE o

AEENSHRIAMEENTEAR A
SNERKR - EERBRERABHESAR -
EFeEMNIREEESERRMOIK
woBMnT o

S S L B

AEBENEBREE AERXSTIEIN
AREHE ARBREARFNDEE
%o Eitt - SMNE R R AR o

SMERBREERTAZAFEIAKR
EREBRIEEXRZEH MRS 2 AR -
AEFEAZ 2 ¥ RBENIAZTFE
MIRTTHESR TARAKENRED X
5 BEREENBEUNARKE.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s material monetary assets that RIER KAEBEBAARBEEIN
are denominated other than RMB at the end of reporting period are MEZEEEEEZREENT :
as follows:
Assets
&E
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT
HK$ BT 30,556 22
us$ xTT 4,707 62,084
35,263 62,106
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group's
profit before income tax expense for the year in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting period. A

positive number below indicates an increase in profit or decrease in

.cREAREERAFE

(%)

I & B )

BRE D
TRITRBERREAEEFEKRA
BAENEXRMAELENAEESY
A5 B AR E R P S 15 5 32 BT A A A9
BATE - THMEZRTEMN LR
BETR-

loss.
Effect on profit for the year
HER BN ZHE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMBFT T
HK$ to RMB BILAARE
Appreciated by 3% BE3% 917 1
Depreciated by 3% B21E3% (917) (1)
US$ to RMB ETLHARKE
Appreciated by 3% HE{E3% 141 1,863
Depreciated by 3% f2fE3% (141) (1,863)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rate had occurred at the end of reporting
period and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the

period until the next annual reporting date.

BRI 5 T Y R 2800 BB B R 3R 5 R
EREBHARARMERLERAE)
RETRMBEE - R RHBHIESE
BHMNEE TEFERSANESRY
ABTLBEEH T -
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38.

152

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE (continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and cash and cash equivalents and the contingent liabilities in relation
to financing guarantees provided by the Group as disclosed in note 42.
There was no history of default for amounts due from related
companies and other receivables, and the bank deposits are placed in
the banks with high credit-ratings.

In respect to trade receivables, the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy customers and the receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. However,
the Group had a certain degree of concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables. The trade receivables from the five largest debtors as at
31 December 2017 represented 99% (2016: 99%] of total receivables,
respectively, while the largest debtor represented 44% (2016: 59%).
Given the credit worthiness and reputation of the major debtors, the
directors believe the risk arising from concentration is manageable
and not significant.

In relation to the Group's provision of guarantees to financial
institutions to secure obligations of borrowers for repayment of their
borrowings under the Group’s micro financing facilitating services, if
there is a default in repayment by these borrowers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding borrowings owed by the
borrowers to financial institutions up to 50% of the unsettled loan
principal amounts. The financial institutions can exercise the financial
guarantee contract if the borrowers default in repayment by not more
than 90 days. Such guarantees will be released by financial
institutions upon the full repayment of the underlying loans. In order
to minimise the credit risks of these loans, only short term
guarantees of within 1 year are granted. Besides, the credit
department of the Group conducts detailed background and credit
searches and assesses the financial position of each borrower based
on the results before the guarantee is granted. In addition, the credit
department performs loan review regularly to ensure follow up action
is taken to recover overdue debts, if any. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on such
guarantees is significantly reduced. Based on the historical
information, the default rate was only 0.75% in 2017, and the directors
of the Company consider that the financial guarantee liability is
sufficient and no additional provision is necessary. Detailed disclosure
of these guarantees is set out in note 42.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of cash flows from operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that
it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was less than one year.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

.cREAREERAFE

FAIR VALUE (continued) ()
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
EHREER —FRH
REE RERELERE RER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥B TR AR T AR T
2017 2017
Non-derivatives: IEDTAE -
Trade and other payables E5NEMENRE 25,610 25,610 25,610
Bank loans IRITER 61,000 61,000 61,000
86,610 86,610 86,610
Financial guarantees issued EEH B B ER
Maximum amount guaranteed EeEREEE 17,492 17,692 17,492
104,102 104,102 104,102
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted  Within 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BRI —F A
BREE Bens@s BB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARE T T ARET T
2016 20164
Non-derivatives: JELTA -
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b fE - 58 100,422 100,422 100,422
Fair value ~¥F¥E

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to the relative short term maturity
of these financial instruments.

TREERERABNREEREZREH
BHRERANRBHERAIE BARZE
ERMTAMIBARE  HHEKEESR
HERAFERSE-
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

154

39. ¥ 56t

On 1 January 2017, the Group acquired 60% equity interests in (al  AR2017FE1A1H - AEEBEBILR
Beijing Kuaihuika from Mr. Sun and Mr. Wei, being directors RO U RS R e R BRkE A (BD R
and shareholders of the Company, through Beijing Youxiping. ANAIBEERRE)RIERREFRL
The remaining 40% equity interests were held by two 60% B IR 7 o 82 T 40% MY AR 7 fB W
independent non-controlling individual shareholders. Beijing B IEIEREARRRFE - R
Kuaihuika was principally engaged in provision of mobile B It RRBEREBHERER
payment facilitating services at the time of acquisition. The HEAFRNRE - ZWEEEEKX
acquisition was made with the aim to expand the Group's AEBEHLBERIR -
existing scale of operation.
The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing RUWEBHE tRRERT#HAE
Kuaihuika as at the date of acquisition were: ENAEZRAFEAS:
RMB'000

ARBTT
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTRR - 1R & H th FE YR IE 203
Cash and bank balances e RRITHER 35
Accruals and other payables FE&HE A I H b & < FIE (1,037)
Non-controlling interest SEVERRE 320
Net liabilities assumed by the Group REFBREZAEFE (479)
Consideration transferred: EEARE:

— Cash consideration payable (included in —ENReRE(BEEAEMENRIE) 18

other payables)

— Consideration net off with other receivables — SN ER H i E UK IE 2 B 12
Add: Net liabilities assumed meEEZ BEFE 479
Goodwill [k 509
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition: FAKREEAZRERAFRE:

— Cash and bank balances acquired —BAZHRS RIRITHEH 35
Net cash inflow RERAFRE 35

The fair value of deposits and other receivables amounted to
RMB13,000. The gross amount of these receivables is
RMB13,000. None of these receivables have been impaired and

it is expected that the full contractual amounts can be collected.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2017

ReREMERKRBHNDNFES
AR 13,0007 » 3% Z EWFIER
“aFE A ANRHE13,0007T © %5 R
FEMERE AEHAWRE RS
A HFRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A318ILFE

39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

The goodwill of RMB509,000, which is not deductible for tax
purposes, comprises the acquired workforce and the value of
expected synergies arising from the combination of the

acquired business with the existing operations of the Group.

Since the acquisition date, Beijing Kuaihuika has contributed
revenue and loss of approximately RMB2,063,000 and
RMB7,735,000 respectively to the Group.

The acquisition-related costs were immaterial and had been
expensed and were included in administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

On 31 December 2016, the Group acquired further 80% equity
interests in Aigigi Information from two independent third
parties, which was accounted for as available-for-sale financial
asset before acquisition, through Beijing TJYL. Upon completion
of the transaction, the Group recognised a deemed gain on
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets of RMB93,000 in
the profit or loss, and the Group held 100% equity interests in
Aiqigi Information. Aigigi Information is principally engaged in
provision of information technology consultancy services,
application and development services. The acquisition was
made with the aim to expand the Group’'s existing scale of
operation.

9. XS /tw

(a)

(b)

WM FHEERMERQF

(4)

AR A A R 509,000t B &
B1E P& 85 B ) K P UK B 3 A B
AREEREXEBHEEEEENTE
RS EE -

BWERSE tRRERE D
AArAEEEMBEREESD
B ARE2063000T kAR
7,735,000 7T ©

HZE017F12A3BILFE -
HEX AT REL D XA BT
ATTHAEX -

R2016F12A318 - KEEFE B
RARBHBE-—TEMEBBE LS
ZABWEECTEE80%M R
HRWEREAIHEEERME
E-NRHTEKE  AEBREBER
NERFERELSETMHEE SR
BEEMWZE A ARMI30007T + &
REBEREELTEENE HBE
H BT EEIBERERERESE
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

156

(b)

(Continued)

3. XS btw

(b)

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of Aigigi

Information as at the date of acquisition were:

(%)
ErHEEREBREHNERNE
ENBBEZAFENOT

RMB'000
ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 35
Intangible assets mEEE 2,074
Prepayments, deposits, and other receivables FEARTRR - 42 B H fth & W R IE 560
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHE R 530
Accruals and other payables FE&HE I H it 5 FOR (1,215)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised upon fair EH R FEFAEEER
value adjustments REHIBEEE (519)
Net assets attributed to the Group acquired BAZAEEEGEEEFS 1,465
Consideration transferred: EERE:
— 20% equity interest acquired in previous year —EF—FEWIE20% .2 # 200
— Deemed gain on disposal of —RELHEAHEESMEEN KR
available-for-sale financial assets [note 7) (M 5x7) 93
— Consideration net off with other receivables —EMBR—EE S A ERRIEZ KE
due from a vendor 510
— Cash consideration payable —ERNERSRE (BEEE MR FIE)
(included in other payables) 290
Total consideration BB 1,093
Less: Net assets acquired WA EEFE (1,465)
Gain from a bargain purchase = B W (372)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition: HEEE 2R e M AFEE -
Cash and bank balances acquired BAZBR e RRITER 530
Net cash inflow REeERAFH 530
The fair value of trade receivables, deposits, and other B 5 EWKIE - He kHMER

receivables amounted to RMB560,000. The gross amount of

these receivables is RMB560,000. None of these receivables

have been impaired and it is expected that the full contractual

amounts can be collected.

Gain from a bargain purchase of RMB372,000 was recognised

upon completion of the acquisition of the Aigigi Information. The

gain from a bargain purchase on acquisition was mainly

attributable to Aigigi Information’s years of losses due to the

start up stage of business and the valuation of intangible

assets.
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(Continued)
Since the acquisition date, Aiqgigi Information has not
contributed any revenue and profit to the Group. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2016, the Group's
revenue and profit would have been approximately
RMB31,470,000 and RMB154,211,000 respectively.

forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not

This pro

necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future performance.

The acquisition-related costs of RMB10,700 had been expensed
and were included in administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

(a)

On 31 December 2017, the Group disposed of its subsidiary,
Aigigi Information, which is engaged in the provision of
information technology consultancy services, application and
development services in the PRC. The net assets of Aiqiqgi

9. XS /tw

(&)

BREBEHBE BEOTEERRE
ANEBMA U KR FIEE E B o il
W RSB R2016FE1 B 1R 3L » A&
BNl EfEoasAR
#31,470,0007T & A R 154,211,000
Lo ABEEAREEHRBAR I
ER MU EIED R2016F1 A1
HZER A% E 'R &Rk
RQEEBENIRE MW ERIER
KRREETEA -

(b)

HE206F12A3NBILFE  WiE
MK AAR10,700T 2 X H I
BEFAITBAX °

L0 HEMHEB AT

R2017F12A318 » KEBHEH
MEBAREMCHEL  ZAFRRE
Bt EREEERMABARY - E
ARRAERBELE BELHEER

(a)

Information at the date of disposal were as follows: HEBBMZEEFAEDNT
RMB'000
ARBFIT
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 26
Intangible assets mEEE 1,866
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR e RE M E K FRIE 194
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHES 1
Accruals and other payables FE &t B B I H fh & < FE (387)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B & (467)
1,233
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary included in FREZERBRAGTAFREZANN
profit for the year in the consolidated HE—RMEAR WS (MET)
statement of comprehensive income (note 7) 767
Total cash consideration wReNE 2,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRERAZFE
Cash consideration received EHRERE 2,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHEZRE RIBRTHER (1)
Net cash inflow RERAFRE 1,999
wNBFHERHERAS —2—tsss 197
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

158

(b)

40 HEHME 2w

On 30 September 2016, the Group disposed of its subsidiary, (b)  7A2016F9H30H  AEEHE X
Beijing Shenzhoufu Network Technology Development Limited Bt /& A 3136 T4 M A A8 AR B R g
("Shenzhoufu Network”), which is engaged in the provision of RABRAB (MA@ Z2
internet information service business in the PRC. The net AINAPEREIHNEMNRS %
assets of Shenzhoufu Network at the date of disposal were as BowMNHEEREEBRANEE
follows: EEWMT
RMB'000
ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment M HE MR 3
Inventories FE 205
Intangible assets mEEE 1,139
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 139
Prepayments, deposits, and other receivables FERTRR - 42 F H fth fE U R IE 2,381
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE 47
Accruals and other payables FE&HE A I H b < FR (1,552)
Non-controlling interest FEVERR (862
1,500
Gain on disposal of subsidiary included in FREZHEHWBRATAFERERNHN
profit for the year in the consolidated HER B QB ks (MEET)
statement of comprehensive income (note 7) 151
Total cash consideration RBERE 1,651
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEAMNRESRAFE:
Cash consideration received BERBEeRE 1,651
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHE 2R RBTHER (47)
Net cash inflow RERAFE 1,604
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41. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

KERELBHEEHK:

NGERERBRZMEE

Bank
borrowings
BATER
[note 30)
(P #£30)
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and R2016F1 818 ~2016F12A31B &
1 January 2017 2017F 1 A1H —
Changes from cash flows: ReREEH
Proceeds from new bank loans FIRITERPAERIE 61,000
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSGRNEZ DA 61,000
Other changes: Him & e :
Interest expenses (financing) MERXZ(BmE) 794
42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. RAREE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREF T
Guarantees given to financial institutions in =~ MBI E=FRERH 2 2@ ERRA
respect of financial guarantee provided to TEEEREENER
independent third parties 17,492 —

Details about the management of credit risk by the Group regarding

these financing guarantees are set out in note 38.

RSN M ESS

AEERZEREERNEERREE
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(i)

160

Wanlefu Technology, a 66.60% (2016: 63.10%) owned subsidiary (i)

of the Company, has material non-controlling interests (NCI).

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Wanlefu Technology, before intra-group eliminations, is

43. FFERER

TN R B AN R R B 66.60%
(20164F : 63.10%) #E = 2 Mt B
A A E NIRRT (EE
BRAE ) ©

EEMENMBFERERES
EREHSEANTEERSLZE

presented below:

FanT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT

For the year ended 31 December HENANBHLEFE
Revenue W %= 14,153 454
Profit/(loss) for the year F L (&) 1,387 (2,582)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERA () B8 1,387 (2,582)
Profit/ (loss) allocated to NCI DEEEFERER N, (EIR) 321 (953)
Dividends paid to NCI ERTEERER ZKRE = —

For the year ended 31 December HENANHLEFE
Cash used in operating activities REEFHARSE (3,769) (1,553)
Cash used in investing activities KREESAARS (208) (47)
Cash flows from financing activities MEZTDAEHESAE 2,091 4,533
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be (R MAFE (1,886) 2,933

As at 31 December M12A318

Current assets MBEE 7,724 4,570
Non-current assets ERBEE 465 316
Current liabilities mERE (8,829) (6,913)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = —
Net liabilities BEFE (640) (2,027)
Accumulated non-controlling interests SR IEERER (969) (1,503)
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(i) [(Continued)

On 29 August 2017 the Company acquired an additional 3.5%
ownership interest in its subsidiary Wanlefu Technology.
Following the acquisition, the Company had 66.60% ownership
interest. The transaction has been accounted for as an equity
transaction with the NCI as follows:

43, FEIZE R E F )
i (&)

R201798H29H » AR A M HH
B~ &) I g BB RS BB N3.5%
WiEm - ZHEWIEE ARG %S
66.60% MR - R HE AR AR
WX SR IEEREREAT

2017

RMB’000

ARBT R

Consideration paid for 3.5% ownership interest BEA35% w2 KB =

Net liabilities attributable to 3.5% ownership interest  JE{53.5% % 2 B E F 4 (213)
Decrease in equity attributable to owners of the RRFHEER AEIEERR D

Company (included in retained earnings) (Bt ARBEF) (213)
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuea)

(ii)

162

Beijing Kuailhuika, a 51% (2016: nil] owned subsidiary of the

Company, has material NCI.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of

Beijing Kuailhuika, before intra-group eliminations, is presented

(ii)

43. FE 2= IR FE &= )

tHERREFRAEARDAEBENY
(2016F : R)EZ 2B AR &

BAEEBRIFERMER -

FRIERRERFZERERES
ERHEHEANTEERSLZE

below: R
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARETTT
For the year ended 31 December HE212ANBLEEE
Revenue I &= 2,063 —
Loss for the year FAERE (7,754) —
Total comprehensive loss THEERE (7,754) —
Loss allocated to NCI NEEFERER ZEIE (3,420) —
Dividends paid to NCI BN TIHEERER KRB = —
For the year ended 31 December BENZANBLEFE
Cash used in operating activities KEEHAES (5,173) -
Cash used in investing activities KEESARS (36) —
Cash flows from financing activities METHAERERE 6,304 -
Net cash inflows REmAFE 1,095 -
As at 31 December ®12A31H
Current assets BN E E 3,024 -
Non-current assets EMEEE 32 -
Current liabilities eI R=N (10,639) -
Non-current liabilities FRBAE = —
Net liabilities BEFER (7,583) -
Accumulated non-controlling interests REFFEE RS (3,250) —
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(iii)

Joy Credit, a 70.4% (2016: 48.52%) owned subsidiary of the (iii)

Company, has material NCI.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Joy

Credit, before intra-group ellmmations, is presented below:

43, FIF 2 IR FE = )

Joy Credit /&2 A A1 % A 70.4% (2016
F4852%) Em 2B AR H

BHERFFIER AL -

ERFEREDREEE RN DY N
AWM BERBAEZ5/0T

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREF T
For the year ended 31 December HENANBLEEE
Revenue & 943 —
Loss for the year FAEE (8,418) (827)
Total comprehensive loss THEBBER (8,418) (827)
Loss allocated to NCI D EFEIER RS 2 18 (3,101) (426)
Dividends paid to NCI B TR E R 2R A — -
For the year ended 31 December HENRANBLEEE
Cash (used in)/flow from operating KETEB(FTA) /PR RE
activities (7,762) 920
Cash used in investing activities BREEBSFRARS — (2)
Cash flows from/(used in} financing
activities MEFBAE /(TR RERE 2,201 (4,889)
Net cash outflows W& F R (5,561) (3,971)
As at 31 December MW12H31H
Current assets mENE E 4,501 11,767
Non-current assets FERBEE 2 2
Current liabilities mEBE (1,221) (69)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE = —
Net assets BEFEE 3,282 11,700
Accumulated non-controlling interests St IE MRk iEzS 5,592 12,788
BNBFRERMERAT —2—t55HR 163
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43. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)  43. I 122 BR # 25 )

(i) (Continued) i) (&)
On 29 August 2017 the Company acquired an additional 21.88% MR2017F8H 298 » AR A A E W
ownership interest in its subsidiary, Joy Credit. Following the B A &) Joy Credit % 8% 8 51 21.88%
acquisition, the Company had 70.4% ownership interest (note HiEm - ZREWER AQFESR
17). The transaction has been accounted for as an equity 704% M HEZE (M EE17) - R HE A
transaction with the NCI as follows: RINAERR S Bk IFERE
AT
2017
RMB’000
AR®T T
Consideration paid for 21.88% ownership BE1921.88% = 2 K&
interest (2,632)
Net assets attributable to 21.88% ownership  f&{521.88% 1 a2 & = /F &8
interest 4,095
Increase in equity attributable to owners of  ZN/2Q ] A A FE {8 25 38 0
the Company (included in retained earnings) (2 st ARE & F)) 1,463
Y
44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE Lo REHHREE
Except for the termination of acquisition as disclosed in note 36(b}, no PR AP 3136 (b) #E 58 2 Wi 4% LE &N - I f%
other disclosable event is noted. HEM/BKESEE-
45. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  45. #it BT # 3R k
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by KWK N2018FIABABESRE

the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018. HefE K 354 F1) 8% o
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